TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Meeting of the
Board of Regents

Texas State Technical College
Connally Meeting & Conference Center
1651 E. Crest Drive
Waco, TX 76705
and
Teleconference
Dial In: 415-655-0003
Access code: 262 205 27540

Thursday, November 11, 2021
9:05 a.m.

AGENDA

I.  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

Il. INVOCATION

I1l.  DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

IV. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

V. CLOSED MEETING

1. The Closed Meeting is called to Order and a Quorum is determined.

2. Consultation with Attorney (Texas Government Code, Section 551.071)

1. Ted Donovan v. TSTC

Please note: Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted time depending on the length of
the discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times are approximate and may be adjusted as required with no

prior notice.

=vioilo
Z Texas State

Technical College .



2. John Clark Owen v. TSTC
3. Deliberation Regarding Real Property (Texas Government Code, Section 551.072)

1. Sale of Property
2. Real Estate Purchase

4. Personnel Matters (Texas Government Code, Section 551.074)

1. Internal Audit Director Performance Evaluation
2. Chancellor & CEO Performance Evaluation/Compensation

5. Adjourn

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF AUGUST 19, 2021 MEETINGS

VIl. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS

VIlIl. PUBLIC COMMENTS

IX. CHANCELLOR COMMENTS

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS & MINUTE ORDERS

a. Committee for Student Learning and Student Development
Kathy Stewart, Chair; Tony Abad, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

None.
Reports:

1. Core Business Performance SUMmMary REPOIt......nrneeneenseenseesseesesesssssenens 21
Rick Herrera



2. Annual Student Loan Default Rate REPOIt .......coereeenerceenernsiensesinsssseesssssssessenns 28

Rick Herrera

b. Committee for Fiscal Affairs

Tiffany Tremont, Chair

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

37-21(c) Approve the Establishment of a Deferred Compensation Plan Under
Section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code.........rrnrrenrcnerneressennenns 31
Jonathan Hoekstra
38-21(c)  Approve Contracts Associated with Coronavirus Relief Funds That
EXCEEA ST MIllION.c.uoeireeteteeereesessss st sssss s sass s s sasssesssssasssasssassanes 33
Jonathan Hoekstra
39-21(c)  Approve the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for Internet
Services with Charter Communications Operating, LLC. .........cccouueeeue. 35
Jonathan Hoekstra
40-21(c)  Sale of Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft and Use of Proceeds to Update the
Piper Seminole PA44 180 AIrCraft......neneeneissinseiseessisssisssssssssssssesns 37
Jonathan Hoekstra
41-21(c)  POliCy fOr INVESTMENTS....oceemeeeeereeieeieeneessessseesessssesssssssessssssssessassssssssasesss 40
Jonathan Hoekstra
Reports:
1. Budget Performance REPOI ........ieneieerneeeissesnsissesssesssssssssssssssssssssssassssssassasssnes 48
Jonathan Hoekstra
2. Pledged Collateral REPOIt......eiceereiesiesinsississssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassenns 50
Jonathan Hoekstra
3. Quarterly INVeStMENT REPOIT......ovurrerrerireirseisesisssisssssssseasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 51
Jonathan Hoekstra



4. Debt ManagemeNnt REPOIT ....ireineenseinnsisssisesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 53

5. Biennium Report Certifying Investment Officer Training ......c.ccoeccvevverrersernnes 57

6. Quarterly Real Estate Lease Report for MO 15-21 .....nenneneensrseesersessessnnns 58
Jonathan Hoekstra
7. Annual Real Estate Lease REPOI........ineesinnsssinsissnssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssesses 59

Jonathan Hoekstra

Committee for Facilities

Keith Honey, Chair; John Hatchel, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

42-21(c)

43-21(c)

44-21(c)

45-21(c)

46-21(c)

Accept the Project to Construct the Multipurpose Training Facility at
Texas State Technical College in Ft. Bend........cooeeoeeeereernernsrcnensressnsennns 61
Rick Herrera

Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate the John B. Connally
Technology Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco ............ 63
Rick Herrera

Approve the Amended Budget and Accept the Project to Renovate a

Portion of the Industrial Technology Center at Texas State Technical

COlIEGE IN WACO  ecererreieensiseississsisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssses 65
Rick Herrera

Approve the Amended Budget to Renovate the Kultgen Automotive
Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco ........ccvereeeerereerenrnnenns 67
Rick Herrera

Approve the Concept for Capital Construction Assistance Projects...69
Rick Herrera



Reports:

47-21(c)  Rescind MO 18-19(c) which Approved the Project and Budget to
Rework and Replace Paving at Texas State Technical College in

SWEETWALET ...ttt eesesisssessessessesssast st ssssssssssssssssssassasesssass 71

Rick Herrera

1. Major Facility Projects Status Update .........einninsinssssissiseessessssssssssesens 72
Rick Herrera

2.  Deferred Maintenance Projects SUMMAIY .......eenneesesesssssssssssssesssssssees 73
Rick Herrera

. Committee for General Administration

Pat McDonald, Chair; Ron Widup, Member
Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

48-21(c) Approve The TSTC Foundation Operating Plan for the Period
September 1, 2021 to AugQust 31, 2022 ......uoereereeenrinnisseesiessssesssessssesseens 75

Gail Lawrence
Reports:

1. Legislative Oral Report
Gail Lawrence

XI. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

37-21(c) Approve the Establishment of a Deferred Compensation Plan Under
Section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code

38-21(c)  Approve Contracts Associated with Coronavirus Relief Funds That
Exceed $1 Million

39-21(c)  Approve the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for Internet
Services with Charter Communications Operating, LLC.



XIl.

XIll.

XIv.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

40-21(c)

41-21(c)

42-21(c)

43-21(c)

44-21(c)

45-21(c)

46-21(c)

47-21(c)

Sale of Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft and Use of Proceeds to Update
the Piper Seminole PA44 180 Aircraft

Policy for Investments

Accept the Project to Construct the Multipurpose Training Facility at
Texas State Technical College in Ft. Bend

Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate the John B. Connally
Technology Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco

Approve the Amended Budget and Accept the Project to Renovate a
Portion of the Industrial Technology Center at Texas State Technical
College in Waco

Approve the Amended Budget to Renovate the Kultgen Automotive
Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco

Approve the Concept for Capital Construction Assistance Projects
Rescind MO 18-19(c) which Approved the Project and Budget to

Rework and Replace Paving at Texas State Technical College in
Sweetwater

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ACTION ON CLOSED MEETING

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

PROPOSED MEETING DATES

a. Proposed Board of Regents Meeting Dates for Calendar Year 2022.........ccoeveeevrreernnenne 81

CHANCELLOR COMMENTS



XVIIl. BOARD COMMENTS

XIX. ADJOURN



TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Audit Committee Meeting
of the Board of Regents

Texas State Technical College
Connally Meeting & Conference Center
1651 E. Crest Drive
Waco, TX 76705
and
Teleconference
Dial In: 415-655-0003 US Toll
Access code: 120 961 5688

Thursday, August 19, 2021
9:00 a.m.
AGENDA

. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER BY AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBER RON
WIDUP

The meeting of the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents Audit
Committee was called to order at 10:30 a.m., August 19, 2021, by Chairman
Cleveland.

Members Present in Person:
John Hatchel, Curtis Cleveland

Members Present via Video Conference:
Pat McDonald, Tiffany Tremont, Keith Honey, Tony Abad,, Ron Widup, Kathy
Stewart

Members Absent: Alex Meade
A quorum was present and the notice of the meeting had been published.
. COMMITTEE CHAIR COMMENTS

None.

Please note: Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted time depending on the length of
the discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times are approximate and may be adjusted as required with no
prior notice,

=vIiIDODI
8 " TexasState

Technical College .



lll. MINUTE ORDERS

The following Minute Order was presented to the Board of Regents by Jason

Mallory:

24-21(c) Approve Fiscal Year 2022 Audit Plan

IV. REPORTS:
The following reports were presented to the Board of Regents by Jason
Mallory:
1. Status of Fiscal Year 2021 Audit Schedule & Other Projects
2. Summary of Audit Reports
3. Follow-up Schedule & Status
4. Quality Assurance Review on the Internal Audit Department of the Texas
State Technical College
5. Faculty Credentials Audit (21-018A)
6. Audit of HEERF Grant as part of CARES ACT (21-006A)

8.

9.

TAC 202 - Quarterly Update (21-009A)
Financial Processes Audit Report

Licensing Audit of the TSTC Waco Police Department

10. AY 2020 A-133 Evaluation Management Letter

11. AY 2019 Perkins Desk Review Management Letter CFDA 84.048

12. 2020-2021 Perkins Basic Grant Programmatic Desk Review

13. Attestation Disclosure

V. CHANCELLOR COMMENTS

None.

Please note: Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted time depending on the length of
the discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times are approximate and may be adjusted as required with no

prior notice.

=vIiSilG
o " TexasState

Technical College .



V. BOARD COMMENTS
None.
Vil. ADJOURN
The meeting adjourned at 11:17 a.m. _ a®

Ray Rushing
Secretary to the Board of Regents

Please note: Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted time depending on the length of
the discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times are approximate and may be adjusted as required with no

prior notice.

— BN AW Prmscy snset]
=VviDil\.
10 Z TexasState ™

Technical College .



I1.

III.

IV.

Please note:

time depending on the length of the discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times
are approximate and may be adjusted as required with no prior notice.

TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Special Meeting of the
Board of Regents

Texas State Technical College
Connally Meeting & Conference Center
1651 E. Crest Drive
Waco, TX 76705
and
Teleconference
Dial In: 415-655-0003 US Toll
Access code: 120 961 5688

Thursday, August 19, 2021
9:15 a.m.

AGENDA

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents Special Meeting was called to
order at 9:01 a.m., August 19, 2021, by Chairman Cleveland.

DETERMINATION OF QUORUM
Members Present in Person: Curtis Cleveland, John Hatchel

Members Present via Video Conference: Pat McDonald, Tiffany Tremont, Keith
Honey, Ron Widup, Kathy Stewart

Members Absent. Alex Meade
A quorum was present and the notice of the meeting had been published.
ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Upon a motion by Regent McDonald and second by Regent Abad, the Agenda as
presented was adopted unanimously.

CHANCELLOR COMMENTS

Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted S
—
.Rv

=W >
" Texas State

1 Technical College.



VI.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

Please note:

The Chancellor provided a brief summary on the strategic goals of the college, how
COVID-19 has made its effect on the budget and what the future of TSTC holds.

BUDGET OVERVIEW AND DISCUSSION

Jonathan Hoekstra provided an overview of the Fiscal Year 2022 budget and progress

on the strategic plan.
MINUTE ORDERS

Proposed MO#

25-21(c) Approve Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2022

26-21(c) Approve Appropriation Transfers for Fiscal Year 2022

Motion by Regent Hatchel and second by Regent Abad to table the Minute Orders

CHANCELLOR COMMENTS
None.

BOARD COMMENTS

None.

ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 10:23 a.m.

Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted
time depending on the length of the discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times
are approximate and may be adjusted as required with no prior notice.

12

RR

Ray Rushing (Aug 27, 2021 13:30 CDT)

Ray Rushing
Secretary to the Board of
Regents

A TSTC

Texas State :
Technical College .



TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Meeting of the
Board of Regents

Texas State Technical College
Connally Meeting & Conference Center
1651 E. Crest Drive
Waco, TX 76705
and
Teleconference
Dial In: +1-415-655-0003 US Toll
Access code: 120 032 5580

Thursday, August 19, 2021
10:05 a.m.

AGENDA

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER

The meeting of the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents was called to
order at 11:26 a.m., August 19, 2021, by Chairman Cleveland.

INVOCATION
Jonathan Hoekstra provided the invocation.
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

Members Present in Person:
Curtis Cleveland, John Hatchel

Members Present via Video Conference:
Pat McDonald, Tiffany Tremont, Keith Honey, Kathy Stewart, Ron Widup, Tony
Abad

Members Absent:
Alex Meade

A quorum was present and the notice of the meeting had been published.

Please note: Meetings are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than the posted time depending on the length of the
discussions and the reports of preceding meetings. The estimated times are approximate and may be adjusted as
required with no prior notice, .

=S d-
" Texas State

13 Technical College .



ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Upon a motion by Regent Hatchel and second by Regent Widup, the Agenda as
presented was adopted unanimously.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 13, 2021 MEETINGS AND APPROVAL OF
MINUTES OF JULY 12, 2021 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

Upon a motion by Regent Stewart and second by Regent McDonald, the Minutes
of the May 13, 2021 Meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of Regents as
well as the July 12, 2121 Executive Committee Meeting were approved
unanimously.

CLOSED MEETING

Chairman Cleveland announced: The meeting of the TSTC Board of Regents held
at the Connally Meeting & Conference Center in Waco, Texas on Thursday,
August 19, 2021, after proper posting and in accordance with Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code for the specific purpose provided in sections 551.071,
551.072, and 551.074, will recess from open meeting into closed meeting at 11:30
a.m.

The Closed Meeting is called to Order and a Quorum is determined at 11:33 a.m.

1. Consultation with Attorney (Texas Government Code, Section 551.071)
1. Ted Donovan v. TSTC
Discussion of the Ted Donovan v. TSTC case took place.

2. John Clark Owen v. TSTC
Discussion of the John Clark Owen v. TSTC case took place.

3. Kevin Dorton v. TSTC
Discussion of the Kevin Dorton v. TSTC case took place.

2. Deliberation Regarding Real Property (Texas Government Code, Section
551.072)
1. Potential Real Estate Transactions
2. Potential Lease Transactions

4. Personnel Matters (Texas Government Code, Section 551.074)
1. 457f Retirement Plan

5. Adjourn

No action was taken in the Closed Meeting.

14



The August 19, 2021 Closed Session of the Texas State Technical College Board of
Regents adjourned at 12:20 p.m.

Regents return to the Austin Room at conclusion of the Closed Meeting.
OPEN MEETING RECONVENES

The August 19, 2021 Open Meeting of the Texas State Technical College Board of
Regents reconvened at 12:26 p.m.

Secretary to the Board Ray Rushing stated for the Record that a real estate matter
was discussed during Closed Session. The Chairman advised that he had a
conflict with the real estate matter and would abstain from any action should the
Board decide to take such action.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None.

CHANCELLOR COMMENTS

Chancellor provided an update on the higher education landscape and how TSTC
continues to differentiate with a sustainable competitive advantage

COMMITTEE REPORTS & MINUTE ORDERS

a. Committee for Student Learning and Student Development
Kathy Stewart, Chair; Tony Abad, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Regent Stewart provided an update on Student Learning and Student
Development. Regent Stewart recognized the entire faculty for their

work during the pandemic all while pioneering the way for our future.

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

None.
Reports:
None.

b. Committee for Fiscal Affairs
Tiffany Tremont, Chair; Alex Meade, Member

15



Committee Chair Comments

Regent Tremont provided an update on Fiscal Affairs and called on
Jonathan Hoekstra to present the materials.

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

27-21(c) Approve Schedule of Student and Family Housing Rental
Rates, Room and Board Rates, Service Charges and
Deposits, Effective Fall 2022 Semester

28-21(c) Approve Appropriation Transfers for Fiscal Year 2021

Reports:

1. Written Report: Budget Performance
2. Written Report: Pledged Collateral
3. Written Report: Quarterly Investment
4. Written Report: Quarterly Lease

5. Oral Report: SB20 Compliance

6. Oral Report: Survey of Employee Engagement

Closing Comments

Regent Tremont expressed her thanks to TSTC. She is proud of the
College, the Finance team and all teammates working on the Workday
project.

c. Committee for Facilities
Keith Honey, Chair; John Hatchel, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Regent Honey provided an update on Facilities and called on Ray Fried to
present the materials.

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

16




29-21(c) Accept the Project to Renovate the Precision Machining
Technology Lab in the Industrial Technology Center at Texas
State Technical College in Waco.

30-21(c) Accept the Project to Renovate the Residential HVAC Lab in
Building 20H! at the Texas State Technical College in
Harlingen

31-21(c) Approve the Concept for the North Interceptor Project at
Texas State Technical College in Waco
Reports:
1. Written Report: Major Facility Projects Status Update

2. Written Report: Capital Expenditure Plan MP1 Summary Report Fiscal
Year 2021

3. Oral Report: Projects In Progress

d. Committee for General Administration
Pat McDonald, Chair; Ron Widup, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Regent McDonald provided an update on General Administration. He called
on Gail Lawrence to provide an oral update on Legislative Affairs.

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

None.
Reports:

1. Oral Report on Legislative Affairs

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Upon a motion by Regent Honey and second by Regent McDonald, the Consent
Agenda Items were approved unanimously.

17



24-21(c) Approve Fiscal Year 2022 Audit Plan
25-21(c) Approve Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2022
26-21(c) Approve Appropriation Transfers for Fiscal Year 2022

27-21(c) Approve Schedule of Student and Family Housing Rental Rates,
Room and Board Rates, Service Charges and Deposits, Effective
Fall 2022 Semester

28-21(c) Approve Appropriation Transfers for Fiscal Year 2021

29-21(c) Accept the Project to Renovate the Precision Machining
Technology Lab in the Industrial Technology Center at Texas
State Technical College in Waco

30-21(c) Accept the Project to Renovate the Residential HVAC Lab in
Building 20HI at the Texas State Technical College in Harlingen

31-21(c) Approve the Concept for the North Interceptor Project at Texas
State Technical College in Waco

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None.

NEW BUSINESS

None.

ACTION ON CLOSED MEETING

During the Closed meeting, the Regents discussed several real estate matters.
Upon motion by Regent Hatchel and second by Regent Widup, Minute Order 32-
21as presented in Closed Session was approved unanimously by all Regents

present except Chairman Cleveland who recused himself from the action.

32-21 Approve the Concept of Selling the 42-Acre Property Near the Campus at
Texas State Technical College in Waco, Texas

Upon motion by Regent Tremont and second by Regent Stewart, Minute Order 33-21 as
presented in Closed Session was approved unanimously.

18



33-21 Approve the Concept to Sell the Texas State Technical College Interest in
Twelve Educational Broadband Service Licenses and Leases Previously
Issued by the Federal Communications Commission

CHANCELLOR COMMENTS

The Chancellor introduced the new Manager of Board Support, Chelsea Anfenson.
The Chancellor thanked the OIT team, The Foundation and TSTC employees for
their hard work in preparation for today’s meetings. He also expressed
appreciation to the Board for continuing to hold virtual meetings during the COVID-
19 pandemic.

BOARD COMMENTS

The Chairman thanked all employees for their reports and minute orders. The next
meeting is scheduled for November 11, 2021 with the location to be determined at
a later date.

ADJOURN

The meeting adjourned at 1:17 p.m.

RR

Ray Rushing (Aug 27, 2021 13:30 CDT)

Ray Rushing
Secretary to the Board of
Regents

19



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Committee for Student Learning and Student Development
Kathy Stewart, Chair

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:

Proposed MO#

None.

Reports:

Core Business Performance Summary Report 21
Rick Herrera

Annual Student Loan Default Rate Report 28
Rick Herrera

=vi>Ii.
" Texas State

Technical College..
(c) denotes Consent Agenda Item 20



Due to the current electronic method used to conduct TSTC Board Meetings, the following is a
high-level written summary of the core business performance metrics at the college.
Leadership will be prepared to respond to any questions or comments the Board may have
during the Board Meeting.

Key Performance Metric: Competitive Landscape

Historically, college enrollment has an inverse relationship to the Texas unemployment rate.
Student headcount generally goes up when the unemployment rate goes up.

Texas State Technical College Community Colleges

9.3%
! 9.3%

3.4% 3.4%

10/FA 11/FA 12/FA 13/FA 14/FA 15/FA 16/FA 17/FA 18/FA 19/FA 20/FA  10/FA 11/FA 12/FA 13/FA 15/FA 16/FA 17/FA 18/FA 19/FA 20/FA
I cv:s unemployment Rate TSTC Fall Enrollment Community Colleges Fall Enroliment

Source: THECB Accountability, Fall Headcount Enrollment, Net of Over 18 Age Group

Key Takeaways:

e The data shown on this graph is certified data as based on the reporting criteria
established by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB). The counts
shown on this graph include flex entry courses. Flex entry is a count of students whose
summer semester term dates are outside of the reporting period as prescribed by the
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB). The Fall of 2020 enrollment
number of 13,900 students includes a flex entry count of 4,390 students compared to
225 flex students in the Fall of 2019.

e During the pandemic community colleges from across the United States saw an 11%
decline in customers during the Fall 2020 while TSTC saw a 6% decline.

21



Key Performance Metric: Revenue

Although TSTC saw a slight decrease in enrollment during FY 2021, due to changes in tuition
rates and program mix there was an increase in revenues during 2021.

TSTC Revenue and Census Enrollment Trends
Traditional Students - Annual Totals

Annual Sales

(Tuition Revenues)

FY 2018 $42.28M

FY 2019 $43.42M

FY 2020 $43.65M

FY 2021 $43.72M

Customers & Units Sold

(Enroliment & Semester Credit Hours)

250,633 SCH

242,274 SCH

219,650 SCH

197,093 SCH

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021

Key Takeaways:
e TSTC served a smaller number of customers in Fall 2021, but the average customer
purchased a higher number of course units.
e The average sales per student of $3,922 improved over prior year as well as total
revenue.

e Units sold improved to 19.7 semester credit hours per students for fiscal year 2021. The
more units-per-students the better our graduation “churn” rate.

22



Key Performance Metric: Headcount - Overall

TSTC saw the highest number of new students attending since 2016 and our returning student
count held virtually flat. The returning student population will begin to recover in the upcoming
sales cycles.

Census

108,911

6.5% 102,089 103,298

9,622

100,814 99,476

9,427 96,677

8,729 92,304

15/FA 16/FA 17/FA 18/FA 19/FA 20/FA 21/FA 15/FA 16/FA 17/FA 18/FA 19/FA 20/FA 21/FA
’i New ¥ Returning ‘

Key Takeaways:

e Total enrollment was 6.5% above prior year. Recently published National Student
Clearinghouse report states the national community college enrollment average
dropped by 5.6% compared to a 9% drop the prior fall.

e Current growth in new students will have a positive impact on the number of returning
students over the next two years

e Declines in Returning students were due to the 14 programs that were closed in the Fall
of 2019.

23



Key Performance Metric: Headcount by Cluster

TSTC has been laser-focused on high-wage high-demand programs and has been adjusting its

program mix towards these goals. In 2019, TSTC closed 14 programs to focus resources on

applied and industrial technologies. The graph below shows the resulting decline in the
academic customers and the gains in the applied and industrial technologies that resulted from

the intentional strategic retooling.

2,976
761
0%

2,215
0%

0%
15/FA

Academic Units Sold
Semester Credit Hours - Traditional

28,250 28,662

26,243
.
0% 24%

26,567

18,797
0%

0%
15/FA

3,181
987
30%

2,194
1%

29%
16/FA

18,598
-1%

23%
16/FA

2,269
2%

23%
17/FA

19,691
%

20%
17/FA

2,919
2,660
861
13% 830
9%
2,058 439
7% .
6% -8%
18/FA 19/FA

. 23,665
8,884
14% 8,786
13%
17,359 14879
8% 21%
7% -8%
18/FA 19/FA

Key Takeaways:
e The decline in academic customer count has been

resources on high-wage programs.
e Industrial technology programs are growing and showing with record-breaking

enrollment.
e This intentional retooling will result in better employment outcomes for students and

better formula funding for TSTC during the years ahead.

2,331

704
-7%

1,627
-27%

-34%
20/FA

-28%

20/FA

2,090
598
-21%

1,492
-33%

-54%
21/FA

3,011

955
0%

2,056

0%

0%
15/FA

30,809

10,638
0%

20,171

0%

0%

15/FA

3,210
2,950
121;36 965
” 1%
2,014 1,985
2% -3%
23% -2%
16/FA 17/FA

Census

Academic # Customers Applied Technologies # Customers Industrial Technologies # Customers
Student Count - Traditional Student Count - Traditional Student Count - Traditional
4,576

4,373

2,895

2,589
1,033
8% 899
-6%
1862 4690
9%  .18%
-1% -24%
18/FA 19/FA

2,342

818
-14%

1,524

-26%
-40%

20/FA

Applied Technologies Units Sold

Semester Credit Hours -

33,721

Traditional

30,261 30,018

13,529
e 10,485 [ 11 842
-1% 11%

20192 19776
O 2%
27% -3%

16/FA 17/FA

26,279

10,018

6%
1?;;‘ 16,261
4 -19%
1% -25%
18/FA  19/FA

24

23,600

14,576
-28%

-43%
20/FA

2,636

1,076
13%

1,560
-24%

-11%
21/FA

25,901

11,588
9%

9,024
-15%

14,313
-29%

-20%
21/FA

3,440

1,373
0%

2,067
0%
0%

15/FA

4,135

2,238
8%

26%
16/FA

3,893

1,652
20%

2,241
8%

29%
17/FA

4,134

1,839
34%

2,295
11%

45%
18/FA

14,056

1,863
36%

2,402 3193
16% g9
60% 42%

19/FA 20/FA

2,270
10%

78%
21/FA

Industrial Technologies Units Sold
Semester Credit Hours - Traditional

39,301

16,565
0%

22,736
0%

0%
15/FA

46,940

22,752
37%

24,188
6%

24%
16/FA

43,166

19,175
16%

23,991

6%

21%

17/FA

47,037

22,349

35%

24,688

9%

44%

18/FA

50,870

26034 5345
15% 3%
64% 47%
19/FA  20/FA

54,707

24,581
8%

90%
21/FA

intentional and designed to focus



Key Performance Metric: Graduation Rate

While the funding formula keys on any student who left TSTC with 9 credit hours or more,
strategies for graduation are still extremely relevant. Data shows that graduates with an
associate’s degree earn 36% more in salary versus their leaver counterpart in the 1t through 5%
year. Graduates with a certificate earn 7% more than their leaver counterpart in the 1% year
wage and 20% over their counterpart in their 5" year wage. Thus, tracking graduation rates
over time is essential to focusing on the highest-value student pathway.

Census Cohort: Graduate Rate

1,315 1,385 1,432 1,463 1,495 1,549 1,575
1,098 3 12;;,6 37% 38% 40% 41% 42% 43% 44%

14/FA 3599 31%
296 4 21% 26%
13 72 8%
0% 2% m— - -

1,540 1,570 1,593 1,620 1,637
47% 48% 49% 49% 50%

1,399 1,453
1,320 ’ ”
1,213 43% 44%

40%
15/FA 3278 297 2 33% 37%
281
)0/
0% —

1,815 1,872 1,900 1,931 1,951 1,963

1681 1757
29% 41% 42% 43% 44% 45% 45% 45%

9
16/FA 4318 S 12'209/00 31% 35&
412 bl
1 96 10%
o -

1,660
1,497 1,544 1,599 1,638
P 40% 41% 43% 44% 45%

, 37%
17/FA 3725 588 27% 34%
281
3 a8 8% 16%
0% 100 m— -

1,521 1,623 1,690

0/
1,157 36% 20% 43% 44%
18/FA 3811 676 30%
357 18"/
1 68 9% °
0% 2% -
1,052 272
19/FA 3759 645 2% S4%
314 17%
3 12 8%
0% 0%
1 2 3 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Cohort Total Cohort Term Sequence

Based on Running Sum of Distinct Count of Graduates by Term

Key Takeaways:

e Graduation rates have remained steady over the last several cohorts.

e Fall of 2019 graduation rates were impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak for subsequent
periods.

e Student Learning’s pathway initiative and PBE rollout will improve collegewide cycle
times to graduation.

e Cares Act funding recipients have shown an improved retention and graduation rate
over non-recipients.

25



Key Performance Metric: Placement

The college has focused on applied and industrial technologies because the wages of those
graduates are higher in those programs. The graph below shows that although cohorts of
students taking nine hours or more have decreased since 2018-2019, their average wages have
increased over $9,000. This wage increase has resulted in growth in the economic impact to the
state of Texas by 124 million over a four-year period.

Returned Value Production Over Time

389.51M

366.79M
340.22M

264.96M

Cohort: 10,892
Cohort: 11,646
Cohort: 12,743

Avg Wage: 35,761
Avg Wage: 31,495

Cohort: 10,306

Avg Wage: 26,699

Avg Wage: 25,710

2016-2017 2018-2019 2020-2021 2022-2023

Data Source: THECB Funding Formula, Value Add
Updated Oct 2021

Key Takeaways:
e Cohort size was anticipated to drop due to sunsetting of programs.
e Focus on industrial programs has pushed the average wage up by almost $5,000 over
the last 4 years.
e Continued focus on industry demands will continue to allow increases in the average
wage.
e The biggest winner on this trend is our student.

26



CARES Act Funds

At this time TSTC has spent the first two rounds of CARES Acts funds allocated to students
amounting to $9,965,156. The graphs below represent the issuance of the 2" CARES Acts funds

for a total of $4,982,578.

Transportation
16.6%

Books/Tools
17.8%

Childcare
4.6%

Emergency Aid
27.2%

15.9%

Key Takeaways:

20/FA

Cares Recipient Non Cares

W Left

21/sP

37.6%

65.2%

52.3%

Cares Recipient Non Cares

M Graduated W Persisted

e Most of the funding has gone to emergency aid which is assisting students with bills.
e During the Fall semester students were able to request CARES Act 3 funding to assist

with tuition, of which $3,060,856 was applied towards tuition.
e CARES Act funding recipients have demonstrated a good persistence and graduation

rates.

27



Student Loan Default Rate

TSTC continues to focus its energy on ensuring students are properly informed about the risks
and responsibilities associated with receiving a student loan. There is a natural lag in these data
since they measure students after they leave TSTC. So, the 2018 cohort is the latest group
tracked by the federal student loan system.

8.0%

2016

Key Takeaways:

TSTC

8.2%

2017

2018

All Institutions in Texas

12.7%

10.3%
9.7%

2016 2017 2018

9.4%

2016

All Institutions in US

15.0%

7.3%

2017 2018

All Non 4 Year Instutions in Texas

16.0%
14.6%

13.3%

2016 2017 2018

TSTC students show better averages than all other institutions in Texas and nationally.
Ten years ago, TSTC was among the worst in Texas on this metric. Today, TSTC is among

the best.

With the various benefits extended as a result of COVID, the collections for the 2018
borrower cohort were paused in 2019 and therefore may have led to the drop in

percentage rates.

28




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Committee for Fiscal Affairs
Tiffany Tremont, Chair;

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

37-21 (c) Approve the Establishment of a Deferred Compensation Plan Under Section

457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code 31
Jonathan Hoekstra

38-21(c) Approve Contracts Associated with Coronavirus Relief Funds That Exceed $1

Million 33
Jonathan Hoekstra
39-21(c) Approve the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for Internet Services with
Charter Communications Operating, LLC. 35
Jonathan Hoekstra

40-21(c) Sale of Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft and Use of Proceeds to Update the

Piper Seminole PA44 180 Aircraft 37
Jonathan Hoekstra
41-21(c) Policy for Investments 40
Jonathan Hoekstra
Reports:
1. Budget Performance Report 48
Jonathan Hoekstra
2. Pledged Collateral Report 50
Jonathan Hoekstra
3. Quarterly Investment Report 51
Jonathan Hoekstra
4. Debt Management Report 53

Jonathan Hoekstra
. _yV 1 V|

=viSIiC
" Texas State

(c) denotes Consent Agenda Item 2 Technical College .



5. Biennium Report Certifying Investment Officer Training 57

Jonathan Hoekstra
6. Quarterly Real Estate Lease Report for MO 15-21 58

Jonathan Hoekstra
7. Annual Real Estate Lease Report 59

Jonathan Hoekstra

=viSIiC
" Texas State

(c) denotes Consent Agenda Item “ Technical College .



.

Board Meeting Date:
Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended Minute
Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 37-21(c)

Gail Lawrence, Executive Vice Chancellor & Chief of Staff to the Chancellor

Approve the Establishment of a Deferred Compensation Plan Under Section
457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code

TSTCis seeking an avenue to provide supplementary retirement benefits for certain
employees over and above the maximum compensation provided by the Teacher
Retirement System or the Optional Retirement Program retirement benefits.

While a section 457(f) plan resolves the issue of supplementing retirement, the plan
also provides financial incentives in recruiting highly qualified candidates for
employment and encouraging existing qualified employees to continue to devote
their best efforts to the service of Texas State Technical College.

Section 457(f) plans provide employers design flexibility to customize
compensation plans that balance the organization’s goals with the employee’s
preferences. These types of plans are currently in place at other institutions of
higher education in Texas.

Funds are available as currently budgeted.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Legal Opinion Letter from the TSTC General Counsel.

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves the establishment
of a deferred compensation plan under section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and delegates to the Chancellor, or his designee, the authority to execute any and
all necessary documents for the establishment, administration and operation of
said deferred compensation plan.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

31



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

October 15, 2021 254-867-3972

Mr. Michael L. Reeser
Chancellor & CEO

Texas State Technical College
3801 Campus Drive

Waco, Texas 76705

Re: Approve the Establishment of a Deferred Compensation Plan Under Section 457(f) of
the Internal Revenue Code

As requested, | have reviewed and considered the legal ramifications of approving the
establishment of a deferred compensation plan under section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and delegating the authority to execute any and all necessary documents for the establishment,
administration and operation of said deferred compensation plan to the Chancellor, or his
designee.

As authorized by Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated Article 6228a-5, section 3(a), the Board of
Regents may establish a deferred compensation plan pursuant to section 457(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code, for the benefit of a select group of employees defined by the Board of Regents.

Having reviewed relevant portions of Texas Revised Civil Statutes Annotated and the Internal
Revenue Code, it is my opinion that the approval of (1) the establishment of a deferred
compensation plan under section 457(f) of the Internal Revenue Code and (2) the delegation of
authority from the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents to the Chancellor, or his
designee, to execute any and all necessary documents for the establishment, administration and
operation of said deferred compensation plan, comports with state law and TSTC policy.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.
Respectfully Submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Edward C. Vallejo

Associate General Counsel

cc: Jonathan Hoekstra
Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Ray Rushing, J.D.
Vice Chancellor & Chief Legal Officer / General Counsel

. rF 1 PV ]
Vil
—
Texas State

tstc.edu Technical College.,

32



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 38-21(c)

Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Approve Contracts Associated with Coronavirus Relief Funds That Exceed $1
Million

It is expected that a few contracts will exceed $1 million during the process of
purchasing goods and services using Coronavirus relief funds. Board approval is
required for these contracts pursuant to Texas Education Code § 51.9337(f).

There are a number of challenges associated with purchasing goods and services
using Coronavirus relief funds. These include grant compliance requirements,
contract authority limitations, and expenditure deadlines. Seeking board
approval for individual contracts would be unduly burdensome and inefficient
given the frequency of board meetings and the risk of losing the funds if
deadlines are not met. This minute order would allow the Chancellor, or the
Chancellor's designee, to efficiently procure necessary goods and services to
successfully meet the needs of TSTC and meet operational deadlines. Approval
also ensures compliance with Texas Education Code § 51.9337(f).

None.

Funds are available as currently budgeted for the contracts.

This Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Letter from General Counsel

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves agreements
associated with Coronavirus relief fund expenditures that have a total contract
value exceeding $1 million, and delegates its authority to the Chancellor, or his
designee, to enter into and execute any necessary amendments, extensions, or
renewals to the said agreements.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor and Chief Financial Officer

33



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

October 7, 2021 254-867-3972

Mr. Michael L. Reeser
Chancellor & CEO

Texas State Technical College
3801 Campus Drive

Waco, Texas 76705

Re: Approve Contracts Associated with Coronavirus Relief Funds That Exceed $1 Million

As requested, | have reviewed and considered the legal ramifications of approving (1) contracts
associated with the Coronavirus Relief Funds that exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), and (2)
the delegation of authority from the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents to the Chancellor,
or his designee, to enter into and execute all said contracts and any necessary contract amendments,
extensions or renewals.

During the 84th Legislative Session comprehensive changes were made to the Texas Education and
Government Codes. Generally, the TSTC Board of Regents alone has authority to approve and sign
contracts on behalf of TSTC with a value exceeding One Million Dollars (see TEC §51.9337(f) and TGC
2261.254(c)(d)). However, among the changes made to the Texas Education Code and the Texas
Government Code are provisions that allow the TSTC Board of Regents to delegate this approval and
signatory authority to the Chancellor or his designee.

Having reviewed the Texas Education Code and the Texas Government Code, it is my opinion that the
approval of (1) contracts associated with the Coronavirus Relief Funds that exceed One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00), and (2) the delegation of authority from the Texas State Technical College Board of
Regents to the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into and execute all said contracts and any necessary
contract amendments, extensions or renewals, comports with state law and TSTC policy.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.
Respectfully Submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Edward C. Vallejo
Associate General Counsel

cc: Jonathan Hoekstra
Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Ray Rushing, J.D.
Vice Chancellor & Chief Legal Officer / General Counse]

"?.:Iblh
 Teassate

tstc.edu Technical College.,

34



=vVIiDIlw

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:
Additional
Information:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 39-21(c)

Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Approve the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for Internet Services
with Charter Communications Operating, LLC.

TSTC executed a Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for internet services on
July 22,2021. The total contract value for this master service agreement is
expected to exceed $1 million during this fiscal year. Board approval is required
pursuant to Texas Education Code § 51.9337(f).

Approval ensures compliance with Texas Education Code § 51.9337(f).
None.
Funds are available as currently budgeted for the contract.

This Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Letter from General Counsel

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves the service
agreement for internet services with Charter Communication Holdings, LLC for a
total contract value exceeding $1 million, and delegates its authority to the
Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into and execute any necessary
amendments, extensions, or renewals to the said service agreement. Further, in
the event that this service agreement is amended, extended or renewed, the
Board of Regents expressly authorizes the Chancellor, or his designee, to exceed
25 percent of the value of the original contract.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor and Chief Financial Officer

35



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

October 7, 2021 254-867-3972

Mr. Michael L. Reeser
Chancellor & CEO

Texas State Technical College
3801 Campus Drive

Waco, Texas 76705

Re: Approve the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for Internet Services with Charter
Communications Operating, LLC

As requested, | have reviewed and considered the legal ramifications of approving (1) the Spectrum
Enterprise Service Agreement for internet services with Charter Communications Operating, LLC, which
is expected to exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), and (2) the delegation of authority from the
Texas State Technical College Board of Regents to the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into and
execute said Service Agreement and any necessary amendments, extensions or renewals of said Service
Agreement.

During the 84th Legislative Session comprehensive changes were made to the Texas Education and
Government Codes. Generally, the TSTC Board of Regents alone has authority to approve and sign
contracts on behalf of TSTC (1) with a value exceeding One Million Dollars, including any amendment,
extension, or renewal of the contract that increases the value of the original contract to more than One
Million Dollars or (2) that would exceed 25 percent of the value of the original contract approved by the
Board of Regents (see TEC §51.9337(f) and TGC 2261.254(c)(d)). However, among the changes made to
the Texas Education Code and the Texas Government Code are provisions that allow the TSTC Board of
Regents to delegate this approval and signatory authority to the Chancellor or his designee.

Having reviewed the Texas Education Code and the Texas Government Code, it is my opinion that the
approval of (1) the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement for internet services with Charter
Communications Operating, LLC, which is expected to exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), (2)
the delegation of authority from the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents to the Chancellor,
or his designee, to enter into and execute said Service Agreement and any necessary amendments,
extensions or renewals of said Service Agreement, and (3) the authorization for the Chancellor, or his
designee, to exceed 25 percent of the value of the original contract in the event that said Service
Agreement is amended, extended or renewed, comports with state law and TSTC policy.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.
Respectfully Submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Edward C. Vallejo
Associate General Counsel

cc: Jonathan Hoekstra
Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Ray Rushing, J.D.
Vice Chancellor & Chief Legal Officer / General Counsel

":-.:Iblh
 Teassate

tstc.edu Technical College.,

36



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:
Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 40-21(c)
Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Sale of Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft and Use of Proceeds to Update the
Piper Seminole PA44 180 Aircraft

Texas State Technical College (TSTC) acquired a 1980 Piper Turbo Arrow IV aircraft
in 2018 for use by the Aircraft Pilot Training program. The turbo engine system
on the aircraft is complex for trainees, which increases the probability of costly
engine problems and downtime. For instance, over $50,000 has been invested in
the aircraft since the original purchase.

The funds from the sale of the Piper Turbo IV aircraft will be used to update the
Piper Seminole PA44 180 that is currently in TSTC's fleet. The updates will enable
the Aircraft Pilot Training program to use the Piper Seminole for training. The
cost to update the Piper Seminole is estimated at $130,000.

Pursuant to SOS FA 1.13, the sale of any single item with an estimated sale value
of more than $25,000 must be approved in advance by the Board of Regents. At
this time, the sale value of the aircraft is estimated at $100,000.

Selling the Piper Turbo Arrow IV aircraft is in the best interests of TSTC due to the
significant engine problems and downtime associated with using the aircraft for
pilot training. The funds can be reinvested in a less complex aircraft for pilot
training, such as the Piper Seminole. In addition, the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) has changed the minimum complex time requirements for
trainees, and TSTC has instituted a multi-engine degree option since the purchase
of the Piper Turbo Arrow IV. Approval ensures compliance with SOS FA 1.13 as
well.

None.
The sale value of the Piper Turbo Arrow IV is estimated at $100,000. The cost to
update the Piper Seminole PA44 180 is estimated at $130,000.

This Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Letter from Legal Counsel

37



Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

“The Board of Regents approves the sale of the Piper Turbo Arrow IV and the use
of the proceeds to update the Piper Seminole PA44 180 aircraft at TSTC in Waco,
and authorizes the Chancellor, or his designee, to sell the Piper Turbo Arrow IV
and update the Piper Seminole PA44 180 with the proceeds from the sale.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor and Chief Financial Officer

38



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

October 7, 2021 254-867-3972

Mr. Michael L. Reeser
Chancellor & CEO

Texas State Technical College
3801 Campus Drive

Waco, Texas 76705

Re: Sale of Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft and Use of Proceeds to Update the Piper Seminole
PA44 180 Aircraft

As requested, | have reviewed and considered the legal ramifications of approving (1) the sale of the
Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft, with a value exceeding Twenty Five Thousand ($25,000.00), and (2) the
delegation of authority from the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents to the Chancellor, or his
designee, to enter into and execute all documents necessary to complete said sale.

Generally, the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2175, directs state agencies on the proper disposition
of surplus property. However, §2175.304 makes Chapter 2175 inapplicable to TSTC, allowing the Board
to establish written procedures for the disposition of surplus property owned by TSTC. Statewide
Operating Standard No. FA 1.13 directs that the “(s) ale of any single item with an estimated sale value
of more than $25,000 must be approved in advance by the Board of Regents.” Chapters 51 and 135 of
the Texas Education Code vest the organization and control of TSTC with the Board of Regents. This
would include the delegation of authority to enter into contracts and expend funds.

Having reviewed the Texas Education Code and the Texas Government Code, it is my opinion that the
approval of (1) the sale of the Piper Turbo Arrow IV Aircraft, with a value exceeding Twenty Five
Thousand ($25,000.00), and (2) the delegation of authority from the Texas State Technical College Board
of Regents to the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into and execute all documents necessary to
complete said sale, comports with state law and TSTC policy.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.
Respectfully Submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Edward C. Vallejo

Associate General Counsel

cc: Jonathan Hoekstra
Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

Ray Rushing, J.D.
Vice Chancellor & Chief Legal Officer / General Counsel

"?.:Iblh
 Teassate

tstc.edu Technical College.,

39



=ViDI\.

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:
Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 41-21(C)

Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer
Policy for Investments

The Public Funds Investment Act, Government Code Chapter 2256 (the Act),
requires all state agencies to adopt an annual investment policy that ensures
safety of principal, liquidity, and adequate yield for invested funds. The policy
provides pertinent information, and includes operating requirements and
performance standards to ensure compliance with the Act.

Texas State Technical College (TSTC) traditionally approves its investment policy
annually in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, Government Code
Chapter 2256, at the Fall meeting of the TSTC Board of Regents.

None.

No significant fiscal impact.

This Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations to the best of my knowledge.

None.

“It is the policy of Texas State Technical College (TSTC) to prudently invest funds
not needed for immediate operating purposes and other funds such as plant
funds, endowment funds, and other reserve funds. Such funds will be
appropriately invested according to each fund type in consideration of
preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield while meeting the daily
cash flow needs of the college. All deposits and investments shall conform to the
Public Funds Investment Act.

THE COMPETITIVE SELECTION OF INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS AND OPERATING
ACCOUNTS

Before TSTC invests any funds, a competitive ‘bid’ process shall be conducted. If a
specific maturity date is required, either for cash flow purposes or for
conformance to maturity guidelines, bids will be requested for instruments that
meet the maturity requirements. If no specific maturity is required, a market trend
(yield curve) analysis will be conducted to determine which maturities would be
most advantageous.

40



Written or oral bids will be requested from three approved depository banks for
various options with regard to term and instrument. TSTC will accept the bid that
provides the highest rate of return within the maturity required and within the
parameters of these policies. TSTC will maintain a copy of bids obtained.

The Chief Financial Officer shall discuss with the Board of Regents Fiscal Affairs
Committee the existing status of depository agreements with existing operating
accounts at each fall meeting of the Board of Regents, including the necessity of
bidding such operating accounts.

QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONS

TSTC shall maintain a listing of depository financial institutions that are approved
for investment purposes. In order to be qualified as an approved depository
institution, a financial institution must meet the following tests:

1. The financial institution is selected by competitive bid process in
accordance with Section 51.003(a) of the Education Code;

2. The financial institution must provide their most recent Statement of
Condition report on request;

3. The financial institution must sign a ‘Certification by Registered Principal
of Investment Firm/Bank’ certifying that the registered principal reviewed
TSTC's Investment Policy and acknowledges that their organization has
implemented reasonable procedures and controls to comply; and,

4. The financial institution must maintain a consistent record of compliance
with TSTC's collateral coverage and investment policy. TSTC shall use a
competitive bid process in accordance with Section 51.003 of the
Education Code to invest through any one of the following entities:

1. “Primary” government security dealers (as defined by the New
York Federal Reserve), or regional dealers that qualify under
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15C3-1 (uniform
net capital rule).

2. AFederally-insured financial institution doing business in Texas,
or

3. Texas local government investment pools, as permitted in
accordance with Government Code 2256.016 and this policy.

AUTHORIZED BROKERS

The Board of Regents is required to review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified
brokers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with TSTC at
least annually, as set forth in Section 2256.025 of the Public Funds Investment Act.
Accordingly, the following list of qualified brokers is adopted as a part of this

policy:

Community Bank & Trust

41



First Financial Bank

Extraco Banks

Frost Bank

Coastal Securities, Inc.
Hilltop Securities

Investors Brokerage of Texas
Robert W. Baird & Co.

Vining Sparks

Wells Fargo Advisors

ETHICAL GUIDELINES FOR INVESTMENTS

1. Section 51.923 of the Education Code permits an institution of higher
education to contract with a non-profit corporation even though one or
more members of the governing board of the institution of higher
education also serves as a member, director, officer or employee of such a
non-profit corporation. This section further permits an institution of
higher education to contract with a business entity even though one or
more members of the governing board of the institution of higher
education have an interest in the business entity if the interest is not a
substantial interest. An interest is a substantial interest if: (1) the board
member owns one percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the
business entity or owns either one percent or more or $15,000 or more of
the fair market value of the business entity; (2) funds received by the
member from the business entity exceed one percent of the member’s
gross income for the previous year; (3) the member is an officer of the
business entity or a member of the governing board of the business
entity; or (4) an individual related to the member in the first degree by
consanguinity or affinity, as determined under Chapter 573, Government
Code, has an interest in the business entity as described above. If a board
member has a substantial interest in a business entity as described in this
paragraph, the institution of higher education can still contract with that
business entity provided that the board member discloses such interest
to the board and refrains from voting on the contract or transaction
requiring board approval.

2. Section 404.0211 of the Government Code, does not disqualify a bank
from serving as a depository for funds of a state agency if one or more
officers or employees of the state agency, who have the duty of selecting
a depository, is also an officer or director of the bank if a majority of the
members of the board vote to select the bank as a depository; and the
interested officer or employee does not vote or take part in the
proceedings. This section also does not disqualify a bank from serving as a
depository for funds of a state agency if one or more officers or
employees of the state agency, who have the duty of selecting a
depository, own or have a beneficial interest, individually or collectively in
10 percent or less of the outstanding capital stock of the bank, if a
majority of the members of the board vote to select the bank as a
depository; and the interested officer or employee does not vote or take
part in the proceedings.

42



3. Employees of TSTC who are involved in the selection of depository
financial institutions shall not attempt to gain any personal benefit from
the financial institutions in turn for depositing the funds in said financial
institution. At the beginning of each fiscal year these employees must
disclose personal conflicts they may have with individual firms where the
College holds investments. These disclosures are due to the Chief
Financial Officer by October 1 of each year. Investment Officers of TSTC, as
defined by this policy, shall annually disclose any conflicts to the Board
Secretary.

4. Board members are required to declare potential personal conflicts
with business entities that they may have interests.

INVESTMENT OFFICER

The Chief Financial Officer is designated as Investment Officer of TSTC and is
responsible for managing the purchase, sale and the investing of all financial
resources under TSTC control or as granted by law. The Controller is designated as
an alternate investment officer of TSTC who may act on investment decisions in
the absence of the designated investment officer. The designated investment
officers, acting in accordance with the Statewide Operating Standard - Policy for
Investments and exercising due diligence, shall not be held personally
responsible for a specific security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided
that these deviations are reported immediately and that appropriate action is
taken to control adverse developments. Should the Chief Financial Officer be
unable to serve in the capacity of Investment Officer of TSTC, the Chancellor may
designate a successor that shall be ratified by the TSTC Board of Regents at its
next regularly scheduled meeting.

The standard of care to be applied by the Investment Officer shall be the ‘prudent
investor’ rule, which states:

“Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under prevailing
circumstances that a person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence would
exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation, but
for investment, considering the probable safety of the capital and the probable
income to be derived. Investment of funds shall be governed by the following
investment objectives, in order of priority: preservation and safety of principal,
liquidity and yield.”

The prudent investor rule shall be applied in the context of managing the overall
portfolio, rather than an individual investment.

LIQUIDITY
The TSTC Investment Officer shall insure that:

1. Income and expenditure patterns will be monitored and continually
updated to determine monthly cash needs of TSTC;

2. Placement of TSTC's investments and maturity schedules is determined
by the cash needs and cash expectations of TSTC; and,

43



3. The TSTC portfolio will contain liquid interest-earning instruments.
YIELD
The TSTC Investment Officer shall insure that:

1. Theyield on investments is negotiated at the time of purchase and that it
reflects market conditions and yields available; and,

2. Theinvestment portfolio consists of an appropriate mix of short- term
interest-earning instruments that benefit from anticipated market
conditions and that achieve the best allowable yield.

SHORT-TERM VERSUS LONG-TERM PORTFOLIO

Limitations on instruments, diversification and maturity scheduling shall depend
upon whether the funds being invested are considered short- term or long-term
funds. All funds shall be considered short-term except construction funds,
endowment funds, plant funds for future capital projects, and reserve funds.

SHORT-TERM PORTFOLIO DIVERSIFICATION

TSTC will diversify its investments to avoid incurring unreasonable risks inherent
in over-investing in individual financial institutions or maturities.

Maturity Scheduling:

Investment maturities of operating funds shall be scheduled to coincide with
projected cash flow needs, taking into account large routine expenditures
(payroll, bond payments) as well as considering sizeable blocks of anticipated
revenue.

Short-term funds shall be invested in instruments whose maturities do not
exceed one year from the time of purchase.

LONG-TERM PORTFOLIO DIVERSIFICATION

Eligible investment instruments and diversification objectives for the long-term
portfolio shall be the same as for the short-term portfolio.

Maturity scheduling shall be timed according to anticipated need. Weighted
Average portfolio maturity shall not exceed 24 months. Long- term funds shall be
invested in instruments whose maturities do not exceed three years from the
time of purchase.

44



INVESTMENTS
AUTHORIZED investments and collateral are:

1. Certificates of Deposit (in Federally-insured institutions)

Time Certificates of Deposit with a maturity not to exceed two (2) years
from the date of purchase, insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) or its successor, and when possible and appropriate, in
a financial institution or institutions located in the county or counties in
which a TSTC campus operation is located, except for endowment
accounts where the donor references a specific depository.

In addition, separate CDs issued by depositories wherever located,
bundled together into a single investment with the full amount of
principal and interest of each CD federally insured may be purchased
through a selected depository institution with its main office or branch
office in Texas. This depository shall act as the custodian for the various
certificates on behalf of TSTC.

2. Obligations of, or Guaranteed by, Governmental Entities

a. Obligations, including letters of credit, of the United States or its
agencies and instrumentalities;

b. Direct obligations of this state or its agencies and
instrumentalities;

c. Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by, or backed by the full
faith and credit of, this state or the United States or their
respective agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations
that are fully guaranteed or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation or by the explicit full faith and credit of the
United States; and

d. Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than ‘A’ or
its equivalent.

3. Texas public funds investment pools investing in government securities
and repurchase agreements as approved by the Board, rated no less than
AAA or equivalent and seeking to maintain a constant dollar net asset
value.

4. Repurchase agreements (“Repos”) with a defined termination date,
collateralized by Treasury and Federal Agency securities listed in items “a,”
“b” and “c” above, collateralized initially at a minimum market value of
102 percent of the dollar value of the transaction, with the accrued
interest accumulated on the collateral included in the calculation.

UNAUTHORIZED investments and collateral are:
1. Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the

outstanding principal balance of the underlying mortgage-backed
security collateral and pays no principal;

45



2. Obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the
outstanding principal stream of cash flow from the underlying mortgage-
backed security collateral and bears no interest;

3. Collateralized Mortgage Obligations that have a stated final maturity date
of greater than ten years;

4. Collateralized mortgage obligations the interest rate of which is
determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in a market
index; and,

5. Securities of a company that is identified on a list of companies with
scrutinized active business operations in Sudan or Iran or with business
ties to Foreign Terrorist Organizations (collectively, “Listed Companies”)
as published on the State Comptroller's website.

An investment that requires a minimum credit rating does not qualify as an
authorized investment during the period the investment does not have the
minimum credit rating even if the investment had the appropriate rating at the
time of purchase. The Investment Officers shall take all prudent measures that are
consistent with this Policy to liquidate an investment that does not have the
minimum rating.

Bond proceeds investments must comply with the Texas Public Funds Investment
Act, Chapter 2256 of the Government Code, and any amendments made thereto.

The terms of cash gifts or bequests made to TSTC shall be honored with respect to
the donor's preference of depository, type of investment and use of the earnings
provided that the donor’s preference is not contrary to applicable law.
COLLATERAL

Statute requires that all state deposits above the level of federal insurance be fully
collateralized. Statute further requires that all deposits that are collateralized by
securities be protected at a minimum of 100 percent of the deposit amount.
Securities are accepted at 100 percent of their market value. The value of surety
bonds and FHLB Letters of Credit are their face value.

TSTC's funds in excess of FDIC-insurance, are to be fully collateralized at all times
by government securities which include U.S. Treasury obligations and/or direct
obligations of Federal agencies or instrumentalities including certain mortgage-
backed securities, FHLB Letters of Credit or surety bonds.

Pledged securities may be held in safekeeping at a commercial bank in the State
of Texas, the Texas Independent Bankers-Bank (TIB), the Federal Home Loan Bank
(FHLB), or at the Federal Reserve Bank.

The first portion of TSTC's demand and time deposits may be collateralized by the
applicable FDIC coverage.

46



Recommended By:

INVESTMENT TRAINING

Investment officers shall receive five hours of investment training relating to an
investment officer’s responsibilities within six months after assuming duties; and
attend additional training sessions not less than once every two years and receive
not less than five hours of training. Such training from an independent source
shall be sponsored or instructed through the University of North Texas Center for
Public Management, the Government Finance Officers Association, Government
Finance Officers Association of Texas, Government Treasurers Organization of
Texas, Texas Municipal League, Texas Association of School Board Officials, Texas
Association of School Boards, the North Central Texas Council of Governments or
other independent industry organizations to include education in investment
controls, security risks, strategy risks, market risks, and compliance with the Public
Funds Investment Act. The Investment Officer shall report compliance with this
training requirement to the Board of Regents not later than the 180™ day after the
last day of each regular session of the legislature. "

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, Vice Chancellor & Chief Financial Officer

47



Texas State Technical College
Operating Budget Performance

as of August 31, 2021
FY 2021 FY 2021 % of Budget FY 2022
Operating Revenues Budget Actual Utilized NOTE Budget
Returned Value Formula Appropriations 66,124,351 66,124,351 100.0% 69,944,409
Special Items & Other Appropriations 23,169,199 23,289,560 100.5% 24,328,988
Debt Service Appropriations 3,757,232 3,757,232 100.0% 3,752,809
HEAF Appropriations 8,662,500 8,662,500 100.0% 8,662,500
Benefits Appropriations 24,885,151 25,220,318 101.3% 24,719,449
Tuition 44,192,647 42,188,728 95.5% 1 43,966,000
Student Financial Aid 33,369,711 31,283,520 93.7% 31,595,000
Auxiliary Enterprises 10,118,700 7,065,577 69.8% 2 9,003,284
Fees & Educational Sales 3,738,936 3,331,724 89.1% 3,127,500
Industry Relations 3,314,000 1,729,608 52.2% 2 2,575,400
Grants 9,006,112 29,591,833 328.6%] 3,4 15,431,075
Contracts & Other 3,717,700 3,677,198 98.9% 2,408,366
Total Operating Revenues 234,056,239 245,922,149 105.1% 239,514,780
Operating Carryforward / Reserves 1,914,868 (5,869,902) 4 976,157
Operating Expenditures 5
Instruction 66,809,201 61,721,362 92.4% 61,223,499
Student Financial Aid 38,529,711 37,052,710 96.2% 36,860,968
Statewide Benefits 31,492,672 30,988,988 98.4% 30,937,761
Finance 10,756,887 9,257,204 86.1% 10,027,838
External Relations 16,429,279 14,597,994 88.9% 14,038,386
Auxiliary Enterprises 10,966,612 9,376,119 85.5% 6 9,333,756
Enrollment Management 11,064,571 9,589,488 86.7% 10,319,289
Facilities 9,961,314 8,788,986 88.2% 9,179,100
Facilities - Transfer to Capital Budget 1,808,924 1,808,924 100.0% 1,114,958
Information Technology 9,649,790 9,114,807 94.5% 9,070,488
Statewide Administration 4,608,063 4,248,385 92.2% 4,534,902
Debt Service & Leases 11,964,640 12,115,374 101.3% 16,078,645
Utilities & Other 7,808,277 9,514,839 121.9% 7 6,842,785
Grants 4,121,166 19,375,460 470.1% 3 12,928,562
Strategic Pool (to be allocated) - - 8,000,000
Total Operating Expenditures 235,971,107 237,550,640 100.7% 240,490,937
Operating Budget Margin (Deficit) - 2,501,607 0

48



Texas State Technical College
Operating Budget Performance
as of August 31, 2021

Notes:

Explanations are provided below for any notable variances from the orignal budget.

1) Tuition revenue in fiscal year 2021 finished approximately 4% below the original budget. Sluggish demand remained a
factor throughout the entire fiscal year, as the effects of the pandemic continued to linger.

2) Auxiliary Enterprises and Industry Relations revenue suffered the most from pandemic related demand issues. Bookstore
and Food Service operations were very limited throughout the entire fiscal year, and many non-essential continuing
education programs were suspended due to the pandemic.

3) Grant revenue, as well as grant expense, both have extreme variances from the original budget, as several COVID-related
grants continued to be awarded to TSTC, including new CARES Act awards. Additional amounts recieved and expended in
fiscal year 2021 include approximately $10 million in direct aid to students and $4 million for instructional salaries and
equipment. The majority of this grant activity has a net zero effect on the operating margin, and will continue to produce
large variances in the coming years.

4) In addition to the amounts included in note #3 above, $5.87 million of CARES Act funding was received for lost revenue in
fiscal year 2021, which is a component of the grant designed to replace revenue declines in tuition and other sources as a
result of the disruptions caused by the pandemic. TSTC will carry these funds forward into fiscal year 2022 as project plans
are being finalized and executed.

5) As a result of belt-tightening measures implemented near the beginning of the fiscal year, most of the instructional and
operational divisions of the College reduced spending by 10% or more compared to originally budgeted amounts. These
expense reductions provided a necessary counterbalance to offset the reductions in revenue noted in items 1 and 2 above.

6) Correlating with the decline in Auxiliary Enterprises revenue, Auxiliary Enterprises operating expenses in fiscal year 2021
were $2.59 million below budget. This reduction was offset by a $1.03 million increase in reported expenditures as a result of
paying off a long-term loan for a hangar at the Waco airport.

7) Utilities & Other expeditures were approximately 22% over budget for the year, but this variance is the result of a $2.08
million long-term debt payoff to the State Energy Conservation Office (SECO).

49



Depository - Location

First Ntl Bank of Central Texas - Waco
Frost Bank - Harlingen/Fort Bend
Texas National Bank - Sweetwater
Texas Bank & Trust - Marshall
Citizens National Bank - Red Oak
Prosperity Bank - Abilene

Texas Bank - Brownwood

InterBank - Breckenridge

Bank of America - Waco

First Ntl Bank - Albany/Breckenridge
Veritex Comm. Bank - N. Richland Hills
Extracto Banks, N.A. - Waco

Cash in State Treasury

TexasTerm (Government Pool)

TexPool (Government Pool)

TOTAL

TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Pledged Collateral Report

August 31, 2021
DEPOSITS SECURITY ON DEPOSITS
Demand Money Market Total FDIC* Required Collateral at Sufficient
Deposits & Time Deposits Deposits Coverage (up to) Collateral Market Value (Insufficient)
29,206,240 284,527 29,490,767 500,000 28,990,767 42,500,000 13,509,233
75,264 - 75,264 250,000 - 611,621 786,357
26,918 - 26,918 250,000 - - 223,082
27,086 - 27,086 250,000 - - 222,914
11,002 - 11,002 250,000 - - 238,998
11,002 - 11,002 250,000 - - 238,998
10,990 - 10,990 250,000 - - 239,010
10,001 - 10,001 250,000 - - 239,999
- 10,000 10,000 250,000 - - 240,000
- 99,215 99,215 250,000 - - 150,785
- 10,000 10,000 250,000 - - 240,000
- 195,572 195,572 250,000 - - 54,428
9,999,676 - 9,999,676 No Collateral Required
20,411,162 - 20,411,162 No Collateral Required
19,744,821 - 19,744,821 No Collateral Required
79,534,162 599,314 80,133,476

* Federal Deposit Insurance Corp. All demand deposits owned by a public unit held in an insured depository institution within the State in which the public unit is located are added together
and insured up to $250,000. Separately, all time and savings deposits owned by a public unit and held in an insured depository institution within the State in which the public unit is located
are added together and insured up to $250,000. The term "demand deposits" means both interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing deposits.

50



TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Quarterly Investment Report

As of August 31, 2021
Ending Value Beginning Value Ending Value Interest
Description as of 8/31/20 as of 5/31/21 as of 8/31/21 Rate
Operating Funds
Cash in State Treasury 8,784,346 9,811,407 9,999,676 0.22%
Statewide Operating 17,146,300 14,902,847 22,996,253 0.20%
Harlingen - Local Operating 55,468 44,923 49,241 0.01%
Waco - Local Operating 15,683 3,001 3,001 0.20%
Sweetwater - Local Operating 31,899 31,740 26,918 0.20%
Marshall - Local Operating 29,586 26,632 27,086 0.10%
Fort Bend - Local Operating 34,101 26,087 26,023 0.00%
Brownwood - Local Operating 17,843 10,990 10,990 0.01%
System - Local Operating 15,800 3,830 3,001 0.20%
Abilene - Local Operating 17,204 11,002 11,002 0.20%
North Texas - Local Operating 22,537 11,379 11,002 0.10%
Breckenridge - Local Operating 16,943 11,954 10,001 0.10%
Payroll 5,984,186 6,051,902 6,177,035 0.20%
Federal Funds 10 10 10 0.00%
FNB Central Texas - MMKT 2,039,686 496,178 -
FNB Albany/Breckenridge - CD 100,000 - -
FNB Central Texas - CD 1,946,473 761,496 -
First Community Bank - CD 172,368 172,368 -
TexasTerm - Pool 17,397,319 20,409,946 20,411,162 0.04%
Total Operating Funds 53,827,752 52,787,692 59,762,401
Endowment Funds
Bank of America - CD 10,000 10,000 10,000 0.01%
FNB Albany/Breckenridge - CD 99,215 99,215 99,215 0.60%
FNB Central Texas - MMKT 283,561 284,384 284,527 0.20%
Extraco Banks, N.A. 195,572 195,572 195,572 0.25%
Liberty/Veritex Community Bank - CD 10,000 10,000 10,000 2.62%
Total Endowment Funds 598,348 599,171 599,314
Bond Proceeds
FNB Central Texas 1,361,919 85,564 26,940 0.20%
TexPool 25,111,853 20,765,235 19,744,821 0.01%
Total Bond Proceeds 26,473,772 20,850,799 19,771,761
Total All Investments 80,899,872 74,237,662 80,133,476

51




TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Quarterly Investment Report

As of August 31, 2021
Schedule of Time Deposits:
Days
Description Amount Maturity Date  Maturity Rate Type
Veritex Community Bank 10,000 9/7/2022 731 2.62% Endowment
Extraco Banks, N.A. 195,572 12/10/2021 365 0.25%  Endowment
FNB - Albany/Breckenridge 65,000 4/5/2022 365 0.60%  Endowment
FNB - Albany/Breckenridge 34,215 4/13/2022 365 0.60%  Endowment
Bank of America 10,000 8/10/2022 365 0.01%  Endowment
Total Time Deposits 314,787
Weighted Average Maturity (Time Deposits): 354 days
Weighted Average Rate of Interest (All Investments): 0.06%
Current One Year Treasury Bill Rate: 0.07%
Lipper Money Market Funds Average Return (1 YR): 0.01%
FY 2021 Interest Received and Accrued (All Investments): 160,973

All investments are shown at cost. Market value equals cost due to the type of investment. All balances are per

the bank as of the report date.

| certify that this investment portfolio is incompliance with Texas State Technical College's policy on
investments and the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Section 2256).

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Anju Motwani, Vice President & Controller

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Jonathan Hoekstra, Chief Financial Officer

52

10/5/21

Date

10/5/21

Date



FINANCE
OFFICE OF ACCOUNTING & REPORTING

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

254-867-3934

October 4, 2021 254-867-4888

Mr. Curtis Cleveland

Members of the Board of Regents
Texas State Technical College
Waco, Texas 76705

SUBJECT: Semi-annual Report Certifying Debt Management Policy Compliance
Regents:

As detailed in Texas State Technical College Statewide Operating Standard FA 2.4, Policy for Debt
Management it is the policy of the College to use debt to finance capital projects needed to achieve
its strategic objectives. The College will ensure that prudent practices are in place to maintain financial
stability, minimize interest costs, and preserve future financial flexibility. Additionally, a semi-annual
report from the Office of Accounting & Reporting is to be provided to the Board of Regents certifying
compliance with the policy.

Accordingly, | hereby certify that the College currently complies with SOS FA 2.4, Policy for Debt
Management, and with all bond covenants. Further, | have verified that current and projected
revenues are sufficient to fund debt service, as of August 31, 2021. Details of outstanding principal
balances, current debt service due, and the sources of debt service funding have been provided to the
Committee for Fiscal Affairs.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.

Respectfully submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY] [ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, MBA, CPA Chad Wooten, CPA
Vice Chancellor & Associate Vice Chancellor, Finance

Chief Financial Officer

—4 . ____rF 1 PV ]
-.-;l STC
Z TexasState

tstc.edu Technical College.

53



Texas State Technical College
Sources of Debt Service Funding for FY 2022

978,366

o m Line-Item / Pledged
0

Appropriation

m Other Discretionary

6,727,406 Funds

35%
0 Partner Contributions

11,543,014
60%

FY 2022, Debt Source of Funding
Bonds e o __._
RFS Series 2008A Bonds, Taxable (Clean Energy) 71,786 other discretionary funds

line-item appropriation (35%)
RFS Series 2011 Bonds (Tuition / Local Revenue) 2,200,581 partner contributions (45%)
other discrectionary funds (20%)

RFS Series 2011A Bonds (Local Revenue) 368,438 other discretionary funds

Constitutional Appro. Series 2016 Bonds (HEA) - 2974600 pledged appropriation
RFS Series 2016 Bonds (Tuition / Local Revenue) 5,241,631 line-item appropriation (57%)
e __.__.__Otherdiscretionary funds (43%)
RFS Series 2020 Bond (Local Revenue) 3,395,224 other discretionary funds
Tx.PublicFinance Auth, Lease Purchases | 2434584 ¢ other discretionary funds
OtherLeasePurchases 2561943 other discretionary funds
TOTAL: $ 19,248,786

54



Texas State Technical College
Summary of Outstanding Debt as of 8/31/21

Bonds

RFS Series 2008A Bonds, Taxable (Clean Energy)
RFS Series 2011 Bonds (Tuition / Local Revenue)
RFS Series 2011A Bonds (Local Revenue)
Constitutional Appro. Series 2016 Bonds (HEAF)
RFS Series 2016 Bonds (Tuition / Local Revenue)
RFS Series 2020 Bond (Local Revenue)

Total Bonds

Lease Purchases

TSTC Foundation, 2003 (Housing - Marshall)
TSTC Foundation, 2018 (ITC - Fort Bend)

TSTC Foundation, 2020 (Housing - Waco)

TSTC Foundation, 2019 (GMC Yukon)

TSTC Foundation, 2018 (Ford Expedition)

Texas Public Finance Authority (402 leases)

Total Lease Purchases

Total Outstanding Debt:

Outstanding Interest Maturity
Principal Rate Date
71,429 1.00% December 2021
15,665,000 3.75% - 5.00% August 2036
3,075,000 3.00% - 4.00% August 2031
13,275,000 4.00% - 5.00% October 2025
47,810,000 2.00% - 5.00% October 2035
30,000,000 2.53% August 2036
109,896,429
509,223 3.75% October 2023
4,178,983 3.00% September 2025
22,000,000 3.75% August 2046
20,199 4.95% May 2023
10,990 4.50% March 2022
3,739,191 various various through 2026
30,458,586
$ 140,355,014

55



Total Outstanding Debt as of August 31:

2017 125,791,712
2018 126,189,894
2019 116,149,484
2020 134,935,334
2021 140,355,014

TSTC Bond Ratings as of August 31, 2021

Fitch S&P Moody's Rating Description
TSTC Bond Series
2016 HEAF AAA AAA Aaa Prime
AA+ AA+ Aal
AA AA Aa2 o High Grade
AA- AA- Aa3 ®
G}
2009, 2011 A+ A+ Al =
()]
2011A, 2016 A A A2 g Upper Medium Grade
RFS bonds A- A- A3 %
BBB-+ BBB+ Baal B
BBB BBB Baa2 Lower Medium Grade
BBB- BBB- Baa3
BB+ BB+ Ba1l
BB BB Ba2 Below Investmept Grade /
) Speculative
BB- BB- Ba3 2
)
B+ B+ B1 ]
(]
B B B2 a Highly Speculative
B- B- B3 S
o
CCC+ CCC+ Caal &9_,
ccc ccc Caa2 S Substantial Risks / Extremely
g Speculative
CCC- CCC- Caa3 §
cC cC Ca < _
2 Default Imminent
C C %
o
DDD SD C
In Default
DD D

Rating Outlook Summary:

2016 HEAF Bonds: Rated on the credit of the State of Texas, as debt service funds are appropriated by the
state's constitution. Outlook from both Fitch and Moody's is STABLE .

Revenue Financing System (RES) Bonds: . Moody's and S&P rate all four issuances of RFS bonds; Fitch
rates Series 2016 only. Outlook from all three agencies is STABLE .
56




OFFICE OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

254-867-4892
254-867-3973

October 7, 2021

Mr. Curtis Cleveland

Members of the Board of Regents
Texas State Technical College
Waco, TX 76705

Subject: Biennium Report Certifying Investment Officer Training
Regents:

Per Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subtitle F, Section 2256.007, “an investment officer shall attend
a training session not less than once each state fiscal biennium and may receive training from any
independent source approved by the governing body of the state agency. The investment officer
shall prepare a report on this subchapter and deliver the report to the governing body of the state
agency not later than the 10t day after the last day of each regular session of the legislature.”

Accordingly, we hereby certify that Texas State Technical College currently complies with this
requirement. This letter shall serve as the required certification report.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.

Respectfully submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY] [ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Jonathan Hoekstra, MBA, CPA Chad Wooten, CPA

Vice Chancellor &. Associate Vice Chancellor
Chief Financial Officer Finance

=wvisSiC
Z TexasState ™~

tstc.edu Technical College.,

57



*19PJ0 Ijnulw a1eJedas

e y3noJy3 susday Jo paeog ay) 03 pajuasald aie spjoysaJdyl asoyl Suipaadxa sasea| AUy ‘000°00S5$ UBY) SSI)| SI ‘9Se3| 9Y3 JO UOISUDIXD
JO ‘|lemauaJ ‘Uuoiediipow qualipuawe Aue Suipnjpul ‘9sea] 3yl JO anjeA Jejjop 3y (Z) pue ‘sieak om} paadxa 10U S20p ‘SUoISuaIxa [euondo
Suipn|aul ‘ases| ayi o poriad ayy (1) usym ‘1z-S 1 O J4ad ‘syuaday Jo paeog ayy 01 pariodal aJe (JOSS3| Y3 S| D1S1) dA0ge Sased| ay L

€Z/15/8 LZ/1/6 0% D1S1 asea adeds 9210 J0J Wuawaa48y uonetadoo)) Aoua8eaiul UoISSILUWOD) 3JJ0J4JOM SeXa |

€202/82/2 LZ/1/6 891'S¥$ ua8uljdeH ul D151 aseaq 3210 U] ‘uaduljieH Jo uonesodio) JusawdojaAa@ 01 SUQ JUBWPUIWY

zzoz/Le/e  LzoT/zL/L 001'8% Sexa| Y1OoN Ul D1S1 Juawaaudy asea] adeds )77 'Seanidnuisolay SN Jalpiequiog
a1eq wia] | |equels anjeA |e1o0 L 9seaT Jo aweN

1202 ‘'LE 3sn3ny Jo Sy

LZ-S | J3PJQ 1NUI JoJ 110day asea] 91e1s] [eay Ajdariend

3937702 TVIINHO41 31V1S SVYX3L

58



TEXAS STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Annual Real Estate and FCC License Lease Report
As of September 30, 2021

Name of Real Estate Lease Total Value Start Date End Date
Abilene ISD Ground Lease Agreement TSTC in Abilene $750 6/13/2019 6/30/2094
Abilene ISD Space Lease Agreement TSTC in Abilene $17 8/1/2020  12/31/2021
Air Methods Corporation Building 8-1 Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $70,400 5/1/2021 8/31/2022
Antheon Research, Inc. Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $11,981 8/1/2021 10/30/2021
Battlespace Inc. Space Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $3,044,233 11/1/2019  10/31/2029
Bombardier US Aerostructures, LLC Space Lease Agreement TSTC in North Texas $8,400 7/12/2021 3/31/2022
City of Waco Fire Department Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $800 8/1/2008 7/31/2048
Development Corporation of Harlingen, Inc. Office Lease TSTC in Harlingen $112,392 8/1/2019 2/28/2023
Educators Credit Union Building Lease TSTC in Waco $82,134 6/1/2020 5/31/2022
Harlingen CISD Land and Building L Lease TSTC in Harlingen $250 8/27/2008 8/27/2033
Jasie Inc. Building 6-8 and Fuel Farm Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $191,425 4/1/2007 3/31/2027
L-3 Master Building Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $2,435,482 9/1/2012 8/31/2022
L-3 Master Ground Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $7,118,020 9/1/2012 8/31/2032
L-3 Ramp Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $97,478 9/1/2021 2/29/2024
Sav Aviation Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $158,400 6/1/2020 5/31/2022
Stag IV Waco, L.P. Ground Lease Agreement and Ramp/Fence/Parking Lot Agreement TSTC in Waco $5,504,245 4/3/2008 4/2/2048
Temple College Lease Agreement $14,442,481 9/1/2011 8/31/2036
Temple College Lease Purchase Agreement $2,329,700 7/11/2011 8/31/2036
Texas Department of Public Safety Interagency Ground Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $80 2/1/1997  10/31/2037
Texas Parks & Wildlife Boat Space Lease TSTC in Brownwood $8,640 12/3/2020 9/30/2023
Texas Parks & Wildlife Facility Lease TSTC in Brownwood $607,664 5/6/1992 8/31/2023
Texas Workforce Commission Interagency Cooperation Agreement for Office Space Lease TSTC in Waco $0 9/1/2021 8/31/2023
Texas Workforce Commission Letter of Agreement for Workspace TSTC in Harlingen $0 7/31/2018 8/31/2023
TSTC Foundation Ground Lease TSTC in Waco $80 8/7/2020 8/7/2070
TSTI Housing Partnership |, Ltd Village Oaks Ground Lease Agreement TSTC in Waco $281,965 9/17/1991 8/31/2050

Name of FCC License Lease Total Value Start Date End Date
NSAC, LLC WLX317 $1,573,171 9/13/2019 9/13/2049
NSAC, LLC WLX359 $2,304,000 3/19/2021 3/19/2051
NSAC, LLC WLX434 $616,950 9/13/2019 9/13/2049
NSAC, LLC WLX743 $1,175,810 9/13/2019 9/13/2049
NSAC, LLC WLX804 $1,224,053 9/13/2019 9/13/2049
NSAC, LLC WLX860 $894,917 9/13/2019 9/13/2049
NSAC, LLC WLX928 $587,405 9/13/2019 9/13/2049
NSAC, LLC WLX240 $4,239,000 12/17/2007  12/16/2037
NSAC, LLC WLX244 $2,538,000 12/17/2007  12/16/2037
NSAC, LLC WLX348 $1,138,000 12/17/2007  12/16/2037
SpeedConnect LLC WNC723 $165,120 2/5/2018 2/4/2028
Rhino Communications, Inc. WLX368 $384,000 3/5/2021 3/31/2030

TSTC is the "Lessor" for the above leases.

59




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Committee for Facilities
Keith Honey, Chair; John Hatchel, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:

Proposed MO#
42-21(c)  Accept the Project to Construct the Multipurpose Training Facility at Texas
State Technical College in Ft. Bend 61
Rick Herrera

43-21(c)  Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate the John B. Connally Technology
Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco 63
Rick Herrera

44-21(c)  Approve the Amended Budget and Accept the Project to Renovate a Portion of
the Industrial Technology Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco 65
Rick Herrera

45-21(c)  Approve the Amended Budget to Renovate the Kultgen Automotive Center at

Texas State Technical College in Waco 67
Rick Herrera

46-21(c)  Approve the Concept for Capital Construction Assistance Projects 69
Rick Herrera

47-21(c)  Rescind MO 18-19(c) which Approved the Project and Budget to Rework and

Replace Paving at Texas State Technical College in Sweetwater 71
Rick Herrera
Reports:
1. Major Facility Projects Status Update 72
Rick Herrera
2.  Deferred Maintenance Projects Summary 73
Rick Herrera

'-:-;‘Vlblu
Z TexasState

Technical College..
(c) denotes Consent Agenda Item 60 J



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Action Schedule:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 42-21(c)

Rick Herrera, Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Accept the Project to Construct the Multipurpose Training Facility at Texas
State Technical College in Ft. Bend

By EA 08-21 the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approved the
project and budget to construct a Multipurpose Training Facility on the Ft. Bend

Campus.

The project will be completed by the contractor in accordance with the contract
documents.

The project will be complete and ready for training by January 3, 2022.

EA 08-21
MO 42-21(c)

Approve Project and Budget
Accept Project

Funds are available as currently budgeted.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Photo
“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents authorizes the Chancellor, or

his designee, to accept the project for the Multipurpose Training Facility at Texas
State Technical College in Ft. Bend upon final completion.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Raymond D. Fried, Associate Vice Chancellor of Facilities Planning and
Construction

61



~369]]0) [ea1uyd3L
~ _Swhseel__z

=
—

puag 1104 — Ayj1o04 Buluipay asodindiniy

62



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Action Schedule:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 43-21(c)

Rick Herrera, Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate the John B. Connally
Technology Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco

The John B. Connally Center was built in 1998. The first and second floors have
not been renovated and over the time the purpose and function for this space has
changed.

The renovation project will include a high-tech Multifunction Event Center and a
state-of-the-art Welcome Center to serve prospective students on the first floor.
The second floor renovation will provide administrative office space for select
departments and staff.

The project will consist of a 34,005 SF renovation on the first floor and 23,185 SF
renovation on the second floor. The project budget is $5,200,000.

EA 20-21
MO 43-21(c)

Approve Project Concept
Approve Project and Budget

Funds are available as currently budgeted.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Letter from General Counsel.

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves the project and
budget to renovate the John B. Connally Technology Center at Texas State
Technical College in Waco and authorizes the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter
into contracts and all necessary contract amendments greater than One Million
Dollars for the construction of the project.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Raymond D. Fried, Associate Vice Chancellor of Facilities Planning and
Construction

63



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

October 7, 2021 254-867-3972

Mr. Michael L. Reeser
Chancellor & CEO

Texas State Technical College
3801 Campus Drive

Waco, Texas 76705

Re: Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate the John B. Connally Technology Center at
Texas State Technical College in Waco

As requested, | have reviewed and considered the legal ramifications of (1) approving the project and
budget to renovate the John B. Connally Technology Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco,
and (2) authorizing the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into contracts, with a value greater than
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), and any necessary contract amendments for the construction of
said project.

Generally, Chapters 51 and 135 of the Texas Education Code vest the organization and control of TSTC
with the Board of Regents, and this would include the ability to approve projects and the budget for
said projects.

During the 84th Legislative Session comprehensive changes were made to the Texas Education and
Government Codes, wherein the TSTC Board of Regents were given exclusive authority to approve and
sign certain contracts on behalf of TSTC with a value exceeding One Million Dollars (see TEC §51.9337(f)
and TGC 2261.254(c)(d)). However, included in the changes to the aforementioned Codes are provisions
that permit the TSTC Board of Regents to delegate said approval and signatory authority to the
Chancellor or his designee.

Having reviewed the Texas Education Code and the Texas Government Code, it is my opinion that
approval of (1) the project and budget to renovate the John B. Connally Technology Center at Texas
State Technical College in Waco, and (2) the delegation of authority from the Board of Regents to the
Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into contracts, with a value greater than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00), and all necessary contract amendments for the construction of said project, comports
with state law and TSTC policy.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.

Respectfully Submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Edward C. Vallejo
Associate General Counsel

cc: Rick Herrera
Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Ray Rushing, J.D.
Vice Chancellor & Chief Legal Officer / General Counsel

"?.:Iblh
 Teassate

tstc.edu Technical College.,

64



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Action Schedule:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 44-21(c)

Rick Herrera, Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Approve the Amended Budget and Accept the Project to Renovate a
Portion of the Industrial Technology Center at Texas State Technical
College in Waco

By EA 18-21the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approved the
project and budget to renovate a portion of the Industrial Technology Center
for the plumbers testing center on the Waco Campus.

It has become increasingly difficult to establish accurate budgets during the
planning phase of a project due to the direct and indirect effect of the
pandemic. Construction prices have continually increased over the past two
years as a result of a shortage of skilled craftsmen and materials. Shortages in
the workforce increase the necessity for overtime pay which adds a premium
to complete projects on schedule. The project design has been adjusted to
include more costly materials that are available when other material pricing
and delivery dates could not be guaranteed. As a result of supply shortages, it
has become necessary to pay an upcharge to guarantee material delivery. Due
to increases in pricing, the TSTC administration requests to increase the
budget by $220,000 for a total amended project budget of $1,500,000.

The project will be completed by the contractor in accordance with the
contract documents. The project will be completed in January 2022.

Approve Project and Budget EA 18-21
Approve Amended Budget and Accept Project MO 44-21(c)

Funds are available as currently budgeted.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to
the best of my knowledge.

None.

65



Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves the
amended budget and authorizes the Chancellor, or his designee, to accept
the project for the renovation of a portion of the Industrial Technology
Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco upon final completion.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Raymond D. Fried, Associate Vice Chancellor of Facilities Planning and
Construction

66



.

T

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Action Schedule:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 45-21(c)

Rick Herrera, Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Approve the Amended Budget to Renovate the Kultgen Automotive
Center at Texas State Technical College in Waco

By EA 19-21 the Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approved the
project and budget to renovate the Kultgen Automotive Center on the Waco
Campus.

It has become increasingly difficult to establish accurate budgets during the
planning phase of a project due to the direct and indirect effect of the
pandemic. Construction prices have continually increased over the past two
years as a result of a shortage of skilled craftsmen and materials. Shortages in
the workforce increase the necessity for overtime pay which adds a premium
to complete projects on schedule. The project design has been adjusted to
include more costly materials that are available when other material pricing
and delivery dates could not be guaranteed. As a result of supply shortages, it
has become necessary to pay an upcharge to guarantee material delivery. The
pricing for HYAC equipment and fire wall construction had an impact on the
project budget. Due to increases in pricing, the TSTC administration wishes to
increase the budget by $400,000 for a total amended project budget of
$2,300,000.

The project is scheduled to be completed in August 2022.

EA 19-21
MO 45-21(c)

Approve Project and Budget
Approve Amended Budget

Funds are available as currently budgeted.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to
the best of my knowledge.

None.

67



“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves the
Recommended amended budget for the renovation of the Kultgen Automotive Center at
Minute Order: Texas State Technical College in Waco.”

Recommended By: [ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Raymond D. Fried, Associate Vice Chancellor of Facilities Planning and
Construction

68



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Action Schedule
Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 46-21(c)

Rick Herrera, Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Approve the Concept to Construct Multiple Capital Construction Assistance
Projects on Multiple TSTC Campuses

By Senate Bill 52, passed during the third special session of the 87" Texas
Legislature, the Board of Regents of the Texas State Technical College System is
authorized to acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge or equip
property and facilities, including roads and related infrastructure, for projects to
be financed through the issuance of bonds. The Capital Construction Assistance
Projects are in response to the Tuition Revenue Bond requests during this
appropriations cycle.

The TSTC Capital Project Plan (MP1) identified the need for facility expansions to
support growth in response to increased instructional demand and improved
branding on the TSTC campuses. This financing opportunity will provide the funds
needed to design and construct multiple projects on multiple campuses.

Approve the Concept MO-46-21(c)

Revenue bonds or TSTC funds as currently budgeted.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

Letter from General Counsel.

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves the concept to
construct the legislatively authorized Capital Construction Assistance Projects and
authorizes the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into contracts and all
necessary contract amendments greater than One Million Dollars for pre-design
and design phase services.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Raymond D. Fried, Associate Vice Chancellor of Facilities Planning and
Construction

69



OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL

3801 Campus Drive
Waco, Texas 76705

October 24, 2021 254-867-3972

Mr. Michael L. Reeser
Chancellor & CEO

Texas State Technical College
3801 Campus Drive

Waco, Texas 76705

Re: Approve the Concept to Construct Multiple Capital Construction Assistance Projects on
Multiple TSTC Campuses

As requested, | have reviewed and considered the legal ramifications of (1) the approval of the concept
to construct legislatively authorized Capital Construction Assistance Projects, and (2) the delegation of
authority from the Board of Regents to the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into contracts and all
necessary contract amendments greater than One Million Dollars for pre-design and design phase
services for these Projects.

Generally, Chapters 51 and 135 of the Texas Education Code vest the organization and control of TSTC
with the Board of Regents, and this would include (1) the ability to approve concepts to construct
projects and (2) the authority to approve and sign certain contracts on behalf of TSTC with a value
exceeding One Million Dollars and delegating said approval and signatory authority to the Chancellor
or his designee (see also TGC 2261.254(c)(d)). Also, during the last legislative special session, the
Legislature made changes to Chapter 55 of Texas Education Code which authorized the Board to
acquire, purchase, construct, improve, renovate, enlarge or equip property and facilities, including
roads and related infrastructure, for certain projects to be financed through the issuance of bonds.

Having reviewed the Texas Education and Government Codes, it is my opinion that the (1) approval of
the concept to construct legislatively authorized Capital Construction Assistance Projects, and (2)
delegation of authority from the Board of Regents to the Chancellor, or his designee, to enter into
contracts and all necessary contract amendments greater than One Million Dollars for pre-design and
design phase services for these Projects comports with state law and TSTC policy.

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please advise.
Respectfully Submitted,

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Edward C. Vallejo

Associate General Counsel

cc: Rick Herrera
Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Ray Rushing, J.D.
Vice Chancellor & Chief Legal Officer / General Counsel

"?.:Iblh
 Teassate

tstc.edu Technical College.,

70



—=vViDIl

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Action Schedule:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College.

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 47-21(c)

Rick Herrera, Vice Chancellor & Chief Student Services Officer

Rescind MO 18-19(c) which Approved the Project and Budget to Rework and
Replace Paving at Texas State Technical College in Sweetwater

During the history of the institution there have been Minute Orders approved
which were appropriate and necessary at the time. MO 18-19(c) was approved to
replace paving on the Sweetwater Campus.

The project was designed and bid and the project came in over budget. After
reviewing the status and viability of the proposed project it was determined that
the project could be deferred. The plans will be put on the shelf until funds
become available to complete the project. The project will be removed from the
Major Projects List.

None.

Approve Concept MO 07-17(c)
Approve Project and Budget MO 18-19(c)
Rescind MO 18-19(c) MO 47-21(c)

The project budget was $500,000 of which $40,000 has been spent on
engineering services.

The Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

None.
“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents rescinds Minute Order 18-

19(c) to Rework and Replace Paving on the Texas State Technical College in
Sweetwater.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]

Raymond D. Fried, Associate Vice Chancellor of Facilities Planning and
Construction

71



%0 124
aseyd ugisag pue sasndwe) J1S1 3|di|n\ uo
TZ-97 O 1dasuo) anouddy ug1Sap-a4d 404 SIINISS [BINIIDUYIIY 04y $109(044 92UBISISSY UOI3ONJISUO) [eride)

%0 €207 Jaquiadag 109f04da19|dwo)| 000°00S‘T $ 198png [e30L| 000°00S‘T $ le101
€207 Asenuer INT$<198png pue 108foid anoiddy| 000'SCT'T 10BJ1U0D UOI1INJISUO) vou3| ot
(d)1z-TEON 1daduo)anoiddy| 000‘sLE S s921A195 BuisauiBul| 000°00S‘'T S spun4 jeayq aglL 0%eM 0%eM JUl0[ J03da2Ja3u| Y3JON UoIOd D1SL

000°002°'S $ 398pNg [E30L] 000°002'S S |elol

%S €207 Aenuer 193044 939|dwod| 000°00S S $3S0] sJlBUMQO S921JJO SAIIRIISIUIWPY pue
TZ-€v ON INT$<198png pue 108fo.d anoiddy| 000'8VC‘y S 19BJ3U0D UO132NIISUOD “191U3D) WD RN ‘42U UOIIdUNYIINIA 8
(2)T2-02Vv3 1daouojanoiddy| 0002Sy S S9OIAISS [BINI09IYIIY| 000°002°S S spuog JeaH d4¥4/04Y 0%eM 098/\ e.0} 8ulp|Ing Dg[3Y1 91eAoudy

000°00€C $ 123png [B10L] 000°00€C S |e1oL
- $ (9oue|eg) 9AIRSRY SIBUMO

%9 270z sn8ny 109f04d319|dwo)d| 000‘vZT $ $150) SJIBUMQO 8
T¢-SYON 198png papuswy anoiddy| 000'8T0°C $ 10BJ3U0D UOI32NJIISUOD [ 00000 S ppY 198png papuswy
(9)1z-6TV3 INTS<198png pue 103foid anouddy| 000°8ST $ S92IAJSS [B4N1931IYD4Y | 000°006'T S spuog JeaH d44/044 02BN\ 02BN\ UoI1BAOURY J91U3) dAI0WOoINY US|y

000°00S‘T $ 198png ezol [ 0007005 T S |exo)
zeoz Adenuer 193(04d 919|dwo) - S (90oue|eg) anJasaY SlBUMO

%0L 009°TH S $350) SJBUMO 193U20 Su3sa) sssulwexa| £
T ON 103[0.4 1d320y '8 198png papusawy anoiddy| OST'9EE'T S 10BJ3U0D UOI3dNJIISUO) | 0000ZZ S PPV 198png papuswy pJieog Suisuadl] 91e1S Sexa] 8yl Joj 03B\
(9)TZ-8T V3 INT$<198png pue1sfoidanolddy| 05222t § S2IAJBS [JN19911Y2JY| 000°08Z‘T S spuog jeaH d44/01dl 0%/ 0%/ uj Suip|ing D1|3Y1 O UO11I0d B 9}eAOUDY

000°580°9 S 198png e1oy | 000°580°9 S [e10L
720z Isnny 19foida19|dwod| 000798 S 150) SIBUMQ

%t (9)TZ-STON INT$<198png pue 1afoud anoiddy | 000°2987 S $1S0D UOIIdNJISUOD [ 000‘S8S‘T § spun4 ISl 02BN Ul 9
02-97V3 1UeJD Y30 Unsinganoiddy | 000’95 ¢ 3/v | ooo‘oos‘s $ el ya3 Hewd-3/v 0B\ 0B\ J1S1 1es3ulp|ing JS1 pue D33 aleAouay
7z0g Aenuer 103014 319|dwod[ 000°0S5°6 S 193png [e101 [ 0000556 $ |eoL
12-27 ON J91ua) Suluieu) ssodundiyni 1de2dy | 9V T LLT S sSuines
12-80V3 J91ua) Sululeu) 198png pue 129foud anouddy | 627591 S Aepeue 150D siloUMQ n

o (d)oz-sv on uoisuedx3 SulppM 1daddy| SL0°SPLT $ Aepeseq yvIND c

° (2)oz-9€ o 193[0.d Jadiomaul 3daddy [ 0052Te $ Aepesey 3/y

otz'sey S 150D SIBUMQ Jajua) Sulutes| J93ua) Aepeley
(9)oz-so o INT$ < 39eJ3U0) pue 3128png ‘193foid anolddy [ 060°LSE'S S YeND | 000°00E‘E S asodundiynip suoneridoiddy A111198) U9 JOMBUIT [BD14199[3
(2)6T-S¥ ONI 1daouo) 19fodanouddy | 00L°L6€  $ $92IAIBS 3 /V | 000°0SC°9 S 11 '8 | 3seyd suolielidouiddy YA DIaI 028\ pusg "4 puy uoisuedx3 Sulp[9M JL| pudg 1104
1202 Isn3ny 193044 9319|dwod| 000°006°TT $ 193png [e101 | 000°006'TZ $ |elol

%00T (d)oz-TTON 9sea Jaise|A anoaddy | 88TTOL S 150 SlBUMQO v

(d)oz-0T O asea punoJn anoaddy
(9)61-2v ON pue7asea 01daouo)anolddy| Z18'86TTC S dIND p|ing usisaa | 000°006°TC $ uoljlepuno4 3151 p|ing usisaq [e1: [eRIIN

062'7L0°C S 198png [E30L | 062 VZ0C S spund |ejol

000‘€t S $3S0D JSUMO |esodoud

o 062°92LT S $3S0) UOI3dNIISU0) pajeas £
(9)0z-L¥ O 198png pue 13(oidanolddy | 000'S0E S ugisa@ 8uRauIBuUl| 062°VL0T S papunjun aniedwo) 02e M\ 02e M\ 193044 a8eutesq apim sndwe)

G20z snany 129(04d a1 |dwod | 0V VYL 6T § 198png e10L | OV9'V¥L6C § spun4 |e1o)
(9)oz-80 0N TS < 19e43U0) OwaQ pue Juswaleqy anolddy | 97799 S (90oue|eg) aAJesaY SIBUMO

%S9 (9)61-8€ O 198png pue 103foid anouddy | yzz'ss S sainiipuadx3 [euonnippy z
6T-6CV3 INT$<19e13U0D /v anouddy | 8STTYTIT S uy pue [IAID YIAD| 000°00T  § sndwe) 0depm
(9)6T-¥T ON 1daouo) anouddy| Z8E‘E0V'ST $ 91ep 01 paiedi|qo pue paidesiuod| 0¥9‘v¥9'6T $ suolieidosddy d44/04Y 02BN\ 02BN\ uo s3ulp|ing aseqJly owa(Q pue aleqy
(d)tZ-LvON (9) 6T-8T O puldsay| 000005 S 198png [e10L | 000005 S spund |e10]

i 0207/Te/L 199(044 asneq .
(9)61-8T ON 198png pue 1d3foidanoiddy| 00009  $ 1s0) uoipdNIISUO) | 000°09Y S puog 4v3H sndwe) Ja1emizams
(9)£T-L00N 1daouo) anosddy| 00001 S ugisa@g /8uusauidul [ 0000 S puog 4v3aH d44/044| J4eiemisams | Jo1emisams uo Suined aoe|day pue yiomay

wuw_“Eou sjenosddy pasinbay uone’0||y 150D d24nos pung M_om“,u_ﬂ_.\w__ um::_MM.___M”_V\,_ sndwe) awep 123foad #
10T J3qWaNON

1oday s109lo.ud Joley




JONVNILNIVIN A3¥¥343am  a31Ioang HDNYNILNIVIA = JONVNILNIVIN V101 =
yodiy
s[e10L 0%eM\ JLSL 0JVM EFRENE] SYX3L HLYON  aN3g1y¥od TIVHSHYIN SYXIL1SIM  NIONMYVH
) -l- : - - - - -l- : ’
000°000°0TS
000°000°0Z$
000°000°0€S
000°000°0%$
000000°0S$
000°000°09$
000°000°0L$
7C Ad J0) ddueuUdlUIB|A PRI pPUE dURUIIUIRIA 3pIMalelS DS
T60°99T1'65S 8S6'VTCTS 670'T8€'09S sjejo),
7S6'TL06S 000°00TS S6'TLT6S uodily 00B M D151
€LL'8T7'6CS 728'LSES £659/5'6CS ODVYM
000°087S 0s 000°087S D3HDIM3
8/9°9TTS 78’ses 00SCSTS SVYX3L HLYON
8LTCTS [44: A 000°0L$ aN3d 1404
8/T'T9vS 28L0TS 000'0£SS TIVYHSYVIN
8LT'ECT'SS T8LSTS 000'T8€'8S SVYX3L LSIM
YSTT8ITTS 9v8'L6TS 000'6L6'TTS N3IONITYVH
JDNVNILNIVIN a3¥4¥343a a3139aN4 IDNVNILNIVIWN FDNVNILNIVIN 1V10L SNAWVD

¢C Ad 10} @3UBUIJUIBIA] pa443jag puke aJueualuielp 9pimalels J1Sl

73



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Committee for General Administration
Pat McDonald, Chair; Ron Widup, Member

Committee Chair Comments

Minute Orders:
Proposed MO#

48-21(c)  Approve The TSTC Foundation Operating Plan for the Period September 1,
2021 to August 31, 2022 75

Gail Lawrence
Reports:

Legislative Oral Report
Gail Lawrence

=viSIiCu
" Texas State

(c) denotes Consent Agenda Item 2y Technical College ..



=il

Board Meeting Date:

Proposed By:

Subject:

Background:

Justification:

Additional
Information:

Fiscal Implications:

Attestation:

Attachment(s):

Recommended
Minute Order:

Recommended By:

7 TexasState
Technical College..

November 11, 2021 Proposed Minute Order #: 48-21(c)

Gail Lawrence, Executive Vice Chancellor & Chief of Staff

Approve The TSTC Foundation Operating Plan for the Period September 1, 2021
to August 31, 2022

The TSTC Foundation, chartered for the sole purpose of assisting Texas State
Technical College (TSTC) and its students, seeks the approval of its operating plan
for Fiscal Year 2022. The TSTC Foundation administration recommends approval
of the plan.

The special provisions relating only to components of Texas State Technical
College in the General Appropriations Act, approved by the Texas Legislature
biennially, contain the provision that the TSTC Board of Regents must approve a
satisfactory annual operating plan for a foundation that uses any of the College’s
assets or facilities.

TSTC Administration has reviewed the plan and believes that the Board of
Regents will find it to be acceptable and in the best interest of TSTC.

None.

This Minute Order is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations to the
best of my knowledge.

The TSTC Foundation Annual Operating Plan September 1, 2021 — August 31,
2022.

“The Texas State Technical College Board of Regents approves The TSTC
Foundation Operating Plan for the period September 1, 2021 to August 31, 2022.”

[ORIGINAL SIGNED BY]
Gail Lawrence, Executive Vice Chancellor & Chief of Staff

75



o THE 1 =2 1
“—V¥ FOUNDATION.

=
Annual Operating Plan
2021-2022

"Moving the Needle Forward."



Introduction

The TSTC Foundation was created to be independent of Texas State Technical College (TSTC or
the College) to accomplish several objectives that could not be done otherwise. Among other
things, when individuals or business organizations wish to contribute money or other resources
to TSTC, The Foundation can accept the gift and offer a tax deduction. Additionally, The TSTC
Foundation can assist TSTC by providing funding for scholarships and other important purposes,
investing gifts and donations, building relationships, and collaborating with individuals and
outside entities, and by providing financing arrangements for capital purposes.

The TSTC Foundation, created in 2000, is recognized by the United States Internal Revenue
Service as a 501(c)3 non-profit organization, and is purposed to “promote the interests and
general welfare of all components of the Texas State Technical College System, to encourage
the development of community support for technical education across Texas; to contact
legislators and other governmental agencies in support of TSTC’s role and mission; to influence
public opinion in support of technical education in general and Texas State Technical College in
particular.”

The relationship between TSTC and The TSTC Foundation is specified in writing in the form of a
mutually approved memorandum of understanding. In this agreement, The Foundation agrees
to provide support to the College in accordance with the provisions of its Articles of
Incorporation, Charter, and Bylaws. This includes, but is not limited to, raising, receiving,
acknowledging, investing, accounting for, and administering funds for the College to use for
operational and educational purposes, as well as for legislative support. The agreement
specified in-kind support from TSTC in the form of building, equipment, and employees.

The TSTC Foundation encourages a culture of philanthropy through our strategic partners
across the state. Our role in Placing More Texans in Great Paying Jobs supports student success
and bolsters the Texas workforce.

Year after year, The TSTC Foundation works to increase collaboration between business,
industry, government, and community partners. The External Relations Division (ERD), created
in February 2021, brings together seven departments: The TSTC Foundation, Government
Affairs, Student Recruiting, Career Services, Workforce Training, Communication and Creative
Services and Event Management. The effort of this collective group advances the strategic goals
and legislative objectives by aligning internal and external stakeholders. The result strengthens
TSTC’s position for employing our graduates with the best of the best industry leaders.

The TSTC Foundation plays a key role for ERD as the fundraising arm of the division. Our priority
to scale operations for growth will facilitate our contribution to TSTC’s mission.

77



The TSTC Foundation

Advancement is the strategic, integrated method of managing relationships to increase
understanding and support among an educational institution’s key constituents, including
alumni and friends, government policy makers, the media, members of the community, and
philanthropic entities of all types.

The primary core disciplines of educational advancement are alumni relations, communications,
marketing, and fundraising. Advancement professionals work on behalf of educational
institutions to:

1. Secure private financial support from potential donors committed to the mission of
the institution.

2. Engage alumni in the life of the institution as volunteers, advocates, and supporters.

3. Promote, or market, the institution to prospective students, their parents, and
others.

4. Communicate about the institution with those who have a stake in its success
including community members, business leaders, government officials, the press,
and others.

The Departments within The TSTC Foundation are:

1. Advancement Operations

Advancement Operations consists of donor relations and stewardship, gift
processing, gift accounting, the alumni network, scholarship management and
administration, and database management and research.

2. Field Development

The Field Development department consists of Field Development Officers (FDOs)
responsible for the process of gathering voluntary contributions of capital, cash, or
in-kind gifts from individuals, businesses, industry partners, or charitable
foundations. The FDOs also identify leads for our work within the External Relations
Division (ERD) partners.

Goals for 2021-2022

Increase cash gifts by 10%.
Recover 20% of all lapsed donors.
Increase donor retention by 2%.
Create a new donor growth plan.

PwnNPE

78



Strategies for 2021-2022

Increase Cash Gifts by 10%

1.

vk wn

Pursue a tiered Annual Corporate Giving Campaign marketed towards our target market of
existing industry and business partners.

Launch a Council of Advocates for each TSTC region.

Continue tracking and accountability procedures with our donor database.

Establish Planned Giving Program.

Work closely with ERD to maintain visibility and presence in our local communities through
attendance at strategic and appropriate events that increase the TSTC brand.

Formalize processes and procedures for past successes such as Private Foundation engagement,
Economic Development partnerships, special projects, and more.

Recover 20% of All Lapsed Donors

1.

Generate warm lead outreach system in which all lapsed donors will be contacted via those
within The TSTC Foundation of whom they have an established relationship.

Create deliberate donor personas on all lapsed donors identifying critical data points to
understand what they care about, why they donated, how they engaged, amount of gift,
frequency of gift, etc.

Identifying and analyzing trends of when lapsed donors last engaged to improve holes in
communication or engagement preferences.

Convert tracking and accountability procedures into the Raiser’s Edge database.

Conduct quarterly updates in the Raiser’s Edge database with address moves, deceased, and
duplicate record clean up.

Increase Donor Retention by 2%

PwnNPE

Send out donor surveys using results to inform communication and recognition strategy.
Integrate digital communication strategy for more frequent touchpoints with donors.

Hone broad-based impact reporting for large groups of donors in addition to the annual report.
Work cross-functionally with FDOs and Career Services to implement top tier custom
engagement plans utilizing the Council of Advocates, advisory boards, and VIP events at the
local and statewide level.

Develop and launch individual named and endowed scholarship reports that aim to
demonstrate the impact of gifts.

Continue driving the impact of gifts on student success by showcasing student stories in our
touchpoints with donors.

Create New Donor Growth Plan

Audit historical sources of revenues and trends to reveal potential opportunities for new donor
cultivation creating a prospect donor persona.

Understand which communication channels are available to us and how best to utilize them for
outreach about donor opportunities.

Implement an Annual Fund that works as a mass solicitation program to capture new donors
and low level giving on a recurring basis throughout the year.

79



4. Work closely with campus provosts to maintain visibility and presence in the local community
through attendance at strategic and appropriate events that will increase TSTC brand.

5. Launch a Quarterly Vendor Outreach Campaign to new TSTC vendor partners.

6. Launch Alumni Legacy Scholarship campaign for the purposes of converting alumni to donors
and continue engagement with alumni via the Alumni e-Newsletter.

7. Establish a biannual campaign to TSTC employees about payroll deduction options for gifts to
The TSTC Foundation.

Conclusion

This presents The TSTC Foundation’s operational plan for fiscal year 2022 in accordance with the
operational agreement between TSTC and The TSTC Foundation. This operational plan is written to
directly support the purpose of promoting the interests and welfare of Texas State Technical College,
and to develop community and legislative support by raising and managing private resources supporting
the mission and priorities of the College and to provide a margin of institutional excellence unavailable
with state funds.

80



Texas State Technical College

Board of Regents

PROPOSED Meeting Dates for Calendar Year 2022

Event Date Venue
Annual Board .
Wednesday, February 9, 2021 TSTC in Waco
Retreat
Winter Meeting Thursday, February 10, 2022 TSTC in Waco

Spring Meeting

Summer Meetings

Fall Meeting

Thursday, May 12, 2022

Wednesday, August 17, 2022
Thursday, August 18, 2022

Thursday, November 10, 2022

81

TSTC in Fort Bend
TSTC in Waco

TSTC in Waco

=visoilo
Z TexasState

Technical College..



	001 11.11.2021 Letter with Board Materials
	002 Quarterly Attestation - don_t number
	000 Regent Meeting Grid side pocket - don't number
	003 BOR Meeting Agenda Nov 2021
	00 Student Learning and Student Dev Nov 2021
	00 Fiscal Affairs Contents Nov 2021-1
	003a MO - Contracts Exceeding $1 Million from Coronavirus Funds (1)
	003b - Legal Opinion - Contracts Exceeding $1 Million for Coronavirus Relief Funds
	004a MO - Charter Communication Operating, LLC (ev 2021.10.07) (5)
	004b -Legal Opinion - Charter Communications, LLCS Spectrum (V2 ev 2021.10.07) (1)
	005a MO - Sale of Aircraft
	005b MO - Legal Opinion - Sale of Aircraft
	006 MO - Investment Policy - Nov 2021 BOR
	MO 15-21 Quarterly Lease Report Ending 083121 (2)
	R02 Pledged Collateral Report 8.31.21
	R03 Quarterly Investment Report 8.31.21
	R05 2021 Biennium Report Certifying Investment Officer Training
	R04 Debt Management Report as of 8.31.21
	R06 Annual Real Estate Lease Report 111121 (2).xlsx - Sheet1
	00 Facilities Contents Nov 2021-1
	Legal Opinion (Breckenridge welding reno $1M plus) (ev 2021.10.07)
	Legal Opinion (JBC reno $1M plus) (ev 2021.10.07)-1
	Major Projects List 11-11-2021 Final
	MO Accept the Project to Construct the Multipurpose Training Facility at Ft. Bend Final
	MO Approve the Amended Budget and Accept the Project to Renovate a Portion of the ITC at Waco Final
	MO Approve the Amended Budget to Renovate the Kultgen Automotive Center Waco Final
	MO Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate a Portion of the Welding Technology Center at Breckenridge Final
	MO Approve the Project and Budget to Renovate the JBC Technology Center at Waco Final
	MO Rescind MO 18-19(c) to Rework and Replace Paving at Sweetwater Final
	00 General Administration Contents Nov 2021
	FY22 Foundation Operational Plan - draft
	November 2021 MO - Foundation Operating Plan



